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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 5 47 22

Audited results for

the year ended 30 April
BENA=+HILFEEZ

e AT E 3
2021 2020 Changes
e S S TR R 5 W)
Revenue (HKS$000) sk (F L) 368,321 274,577 93,744
Loss for the year (HK$ 000) KAERE R (T ) (12,205) (68,145) 55,940
Loss per share (HK cent) g B 18 (AL ) (6.49) (36.24) 29.75
EBITDA (HKS$’000) EBITDA ( F#5)
(Note 1) (KtaEl) 1,630 683 947
As at As at
30 April 30 April
2021 2020
/A Nt R /S e 2 D Changes
WH=+H WH="+H 5 W)
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 2) EARAMBILR %) (Mfit2) 31.8% 14.9% 16.9%
Notes : Mt at -

1.

EBITDA for the year ended 30 April 2021, computed as loss
before tax excluding net fair value gain on financial asset at
FVTPL, fair value loss on derivative financial instruments, realised
gain on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL, depreciation and
finance cost. EBITDA for the year ended 30 April 2020, computed
as loss before tax excluding net fair value loss on financial asset
at FVTPL, realised loss on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL,
impairment of property, plant and equipment, depreciation and
finance cost.

Gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases
over shareholders’ equity.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
EREHE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”),
I hereby present the results of QPL International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”’) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 30 April 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the fiscal year under review, the Group reported a turnover
of HK$368.32 million, representing an increase of 34.14% as
compared with HK$274.58 million for the previous year. The
Group’s consolidated loss for the year amounted to HK$12.21
million as compared with a consolidated loss of HK$68.15 million
for the previous year. Basic and diluted loss per share was HK6.49
cents (2020: HK36.24 cents). Recurring EBITDA, computed as
loss before tax excluding net fair value loss on financial asset
at FVTPL, fair value loss on derivative financial instruments,
realised gain on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL, depreciation
and finance cost, amounted to a EBITDA of HK$1.63 million
(2020: Recurring EBITDA, computed as loss before tax excluding
net fair value loss on financial asset at FVTPL, realised loss on
disposal of financial asset at FVTPL, impairment of property,
plant and equipment, depreciation and finance cost, amounted to
a EBITDA of HK$0.68 million).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year (2020: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group faced many challenges
in the tough business environment and recorded an increase in
turnover by 34.14% to HK$368.32 million (2020: HK$274.58
million) during the year.
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV e

During the year, staff costs increased by 33.19% to HK$105.58
million (2020: HK$79.27 million) representing 28.67% (2020:
28.87%) of the Group’s turnover. Other expenses, mainly included
factory operating costs, and selling and administrative expenses,
such as repair and maintenance expenses of HKS$28.47 million
(2020: HK$23.63 million), electricity and water charges, and
fuel expenses of HK$23.69 million (2020: HKS$21.36 million),
transportation expenses of HKS$3.27 million (2020: HK$4.77
million), declaration expenses and custom tariffs of HKS$0.62
million (2020: HK$2.60 million), consumables, tools and utensils
of HKS$5.74 million (2020: HK$2.68 million), sale commission
and agency fee of HK$3.57 million (2020: HK$2.67 million),
advertising and promotion expenses of HKS$3.03 million (2020:
HK$2.87 million), business entertainment expenses of HK$7.43
million (2020: HKS$5.0 million), insurance expenses of HK$1.63
million (2020: HK$2.26 million), and legal and professional fee
of HK$3.0 million (2020: HK$4.89 million), increased by 10.72%
to HK$90.87 million (2020: HK$82.07 million) representing
24.67% (2020: 29.89%) of the Group’s turnover during the year.
The Group will continue to monitor the market and consequently
adjust its labour force and labour structure in order to achieve
a better staff mix to enhance labour efficiency. The Group will
also continuously tighten its expenditure in its efforts to minimise
the impact of increasing factory operating costs, and selling and
administrative expenses.

Besides, the financial results of the Group during the year under
review were also affected by the net fair value gain on financial
asset at FVTPL of HKS$7.98 million. The net fair value gain
on financial asset at FVTPL comprised of the fair value gain
on investment in listed equity securities of China Properties
Investment Holdings Limited (“CPI”) (approximately HK$2.21
million) and Milan Station Holdings Limited (“MSH”) (approximately
HK$2.09 million). Details of the financial asset at FVTPL are
disclosed in the “Significant Investments” section below.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV 8

PLACING OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 16 October 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement pursuant to which an independent third party had
agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds of the Company with
the principal amount of HK$9.4 million. The convertible bonds
bears no interest and the maturity date falling on the second
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
subscriber of the convertible bonds have the right to convert all or
any portion of the convertible bonds into shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per conversion share (subject
to adjustments). The conversion rights can be exercised from six
months after the date of the issue of the convertible bonds up to
the day immediately prior to and exclusive of the maturity date of
the convertible bonds. Completion of the subscription took place
on 3 November 2020, upon which the convertible bonds were
issued to the subscriber.

It was intended that the Company would utilise the net proceeds
from the issue of the convertible bonds of approximately HK$9.4
million for the general working capital of the Group. As at 30
April 2021, the net proceeds was fully utilized as intended.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to strengthen its engineering and
production departments in order to maintain its competitive edges
for short lead times and high production planning flexibility.
These competitive edges will enable the Group to serve its
customers better and should expand the Group’s market share.

In order to improve the Group’s operational performance, the
Group will continue to implement plans to increase its production
efficiency and capacity. In order to improve the Group’s
competitiveness and fulfill different production requirements, the
Group would deploy resources to upgrade and restructure existing
plants and machineries, and environmental protection facilities.

In addition, the Group will continue to explore other business
opportunities with a view to expanding its principal manufacturing
business and generating improved returns to our shareholders.

AEd
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Since there was no financial asset at FVTPL and other investments
held by the Group valued more than 5% of the total assets of the
Group as at 30 April 2021, there were no significant investments
held by the Group. Details of the financial asset at FVTPL held
by the Group were as follows:

Financial asset at FVTPL A RMEFI AR Z S HE &
Listed equity securities I N

WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS”) EREZE R A RAR ([ERE])
CPI R E R E

China Investment and Finance o [ 5% A AR A TR T
Group Limited (“CIF”) (THEHBE])

MSH KB

Other listed equity securities (Note 1) HAih Evi e AR5 (M it1)

Total A st

Note:

1. As at 30 April 2021, other listed equity securities comprised 11

listed equity securities and none of them was more than 1% of the
total assets of the Group.

WLS, CPI, CIF and MSH are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). The major activities
of WLS are the provision of scaffolding and fitting out services
and other services for construction and buildings work, provision
of gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation
and maintenance services, money lending business, securities
investment business and assets management business. The major
activities of CPI are the properties investment, money lending
and financial services. The major activities of CIF are trading of
securities and investment holding. The major activities of MSH
are engaged in the retailing of handbags, fashion accessories,
embellishments and spa and wellness products.

The Directors considered that the future prospects of the financial
asset at FVTPL held by the Group may be affected by external
market conditions, and the Directors will continue to monitor and
assess the Group’s investment.

[ & o

M AEER - E A =+ AR
5 74 8 [0 40 5 7 R S% 2 4R Fe i Et A BB 2
S W 7 o AL B A AR I A K
G o A7 B A T 2 R A R EAE
ZERMEENT

As at
As at 30 April 2021 30 April 2020
RIRZRE
R-F_Z—HENA=1+H MH=+H
Approximately
percentage to
Fair value the total asset Fair value
HEEEZ
VAP B ARl
HK$’000 HK$’000
THETT T
24,806 4.06% 24,806
6,579 1.08% 4,336
4,845 0.79% 4,522
4,729 0.77% 854
20,064 3.28% 8,352
61,023 9.98% 42,870

1. TR TR = A B HAl B R i 2R
ELAE TR T A 8 2 o HL A5 A A g A £
@3@%%1"0 ©

T B ~ v B 4~ e BB K B R
TS A R A (TSR )) i o
R TR MR Nl TREMEEE
BeKG A6 M B B oAt 4 R #E 5 TR RS~ i
i AR & - By 18 S5 T A A & b 2 %k K i
MBS ~ 605 ~ w8 5 B 6 I A B
BB BB EW ERREL BB E WA
B 4 il e 55 o PR R B S R R
B DL R B P R B ol 9 £ EH S TS Wy
1) TC 4 ~ 2R T i 2 KRR D R E i A

EHD A AEBETHAEAREFARGLZ
B R RO S B R B SNR T DLTR
[ME®Tis &3+ EEES S P g



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally financed its operations by internal cash
resources and bank financing. During the year under review, the
increase in Group’s bank balances and cash was mainly due to
the increase in collateralised bank borrowings by approximately
HK$39.88 million.

As at 30 April 2021, the Group’s bank balances and cash
amounted to HKS$187.72 million (2020: HKS$154.89 million).
To finance its working capital, the Group has incurred total
outstanding debts of HK$124.59 million as at 30 April 2021 (2020:
HK$59.65 million), which comprised HK$39.88 million (2020:
Nil) of collateralised bank borrowings, HK$33.18 million (2020:
HK$37.63 million) of lease liabilities, HK$43.46 million (2020:
HK$22.02 million) of amount due to a director and HK$8.07
million of convertible bond (2020: Nil). In terms of interest
costs, included in the outstanding debts, HK$73.06 million (2020:
HK$37.63 million) was interest bearing and HK$51.53 million (2020:
HK$22.02 million) was interest free.

The gearing ratio was 31.8% as at 30 April 2021 (2020: 14.9%).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s transactions and monetary assets are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
The fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year ended
30 April 2021 did not adversely affect the Group’s operations or
liquidity.

During the year under review, no foreign exchange contract was
entered into by the Group to hedge against the Group’s exposure
to currency fluctuations and it is the policy of the Group not to
enter into any derivative contracts purely for speculative activities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 April 2021, leasehold properties with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$105.16 million (2020: HK$Nil) were pledged
to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group. As at 30 April
2021, motor vehicles with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,499,000 (2020: HK$84,000) were assets held under lease
liabilities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV e

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 30 April 2021, the Group invested HK$7.89
million (2020: HK$3.40 million) in acquiring property, plant and
equipment. This capital expenditure was financed mainly from
internal financial resources.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 30 April 2021, the total number of employees of the
Group was approximately 937 (2020: 780). The Group maintains
its emolument policy to ensure that employee remuneration is
commensurate with job nature, qualifications and experience. The
Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and other benefits to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and of individual employees.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting held on 29 April 2020,
with effective from 5 May 2020, (i) twelve issued shares of a par
value of HK$0.08 each in the issued share capital of the Company
be consolidated into one share of a par value of HK$0.96 each in
the issued share capital of the Company (“Consolidated Share”)
and (ii) the issued share capital of the Company be reduced by (a)
rounding down the number of Consolidated Share in the issued
share capital of the Company to the nearest whole number by
cancelling any fraction of a Consolidated Share in the issued share
capital of the Company; and (b) cancelling the paid up capital
of the Company to the extent of HK$0.95 on each of the then
issued Consolidated Share such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share be reduced from HK$0.96 to HK$0.01.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors and all staff for
their efforts and contribution. Besides, I also would like to offer
my sincere appreciation to all customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuing support.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 27 July 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

w3 i E

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 69, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Li has
been an Executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board
since January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as the Chief Executive
of the Company since January 1989 (except for the period from
February 2004 to December 2008). He is also a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for the Group’s corporate strategic planning, overall management,
business and product development. He has a B. Sc. Degree in
Chemical Engineering and over 40 years of experience in servicing
the semiconductor industry.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 51,
Director of the Company since December 2008. He is responsible

has been an Executive

for the Group’s overall sales, services and supplies management.
Mr. Phen obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology, Loughborough, United
Kingdom. He has over 25 years of experience in semiconductor
sales, services and supplies management through his previous
employment with different companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Tung Siu Ching, aged 67, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since June 2015. Ms. Tung engaged
in import and export industry for more than 25 years. She held
management positions in several trading companies and was
responsible for regional marketing strategy and internal staff
training. Ms. Tung has extensive knowledge in corporate operation
management and in marketing in the PRC and Europe.

Mr. Lai Sau Him, aged 44, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since May 2020. Mr. Lai is responsible
for the Group’s business development. Mr. Lai was engaged in
freight forwarding industry for more than 20 years and has deep
connection and relationship with people engaged in different
aspects. Prior to joining the Group, he was a director of a well
established freight forwarding and logistics one-stop service
provider with over 200 employees in Hong Kong and has acquired
extensive knowledge in corporate operation management. Mr. Lai
also has extensive experience in financial investments in Asia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Chun On Franco, aged 38, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
September 2016. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a Certified Financial Planner registered with
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and hold a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance
from Simon Fraser University in Canada. He is currently a
responsible officer of a licensed corporation to carry out type 1 (dealing
in securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).

Ms. Chung Hoi Yan, aged 39, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
November 2016. She is also the Chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee. She is a qualified member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and hold a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from the City
University of Hong Kong. She has over 10 years of experience in
the auditing and the finance and accounting field. She is currently
a finance manager of a company of which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Rongrui, aged 38, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-Exentive Director of the Company since April 2019. He
is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu was graduated from the profession of law of
China Central Radio and TV University ( 19t # B K E) (in
cooperation with China University of Political Science and Law ( 1
B B2 K2 ) ) in January 2014. Since 2003, he has been working
at the No. 6 Detachment of Chinese Armed Police in Shenzhen,
the PRC as propagandist of the regulation and gained extensive
knowledge in risk management and compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to building and maintaining best
practice standards of corporate governance. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
effective internal controls, stringent disclosure practices and
transparency, independence and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted its own code on corporate governance
practices (the “QPL Code”) incorporating the principles and code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 30 April 2021, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code except for the deviations explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

THE BOARD

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. Responsibilities of the Board include but are not limited
to the formulation of the Group’s strategy and policies, setting of
corporate and management targets and key operational initiatives,
monitoring and control of operational and financial performance,
and approval of major capital expenditures, major investments,
material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or
financial restructuring and significant operational financial and
management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group’s businesses to the executive management under
the supervision of the chief executive of the Company (“Chief
Executive”). The division of responsibilities between the Board
and the management is set out in the QPL Code.

Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have
also been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. Details of these three committees are set out in the
relevant paragraphs below.
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The Company has established a policy enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Board will provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Group, and that the balance
between executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and to enable the Board to
exercise independent judgment.

As at 30 April 2021, the Board comprised seven Directors,
including four executive Directors, one of whom is the founder
of the Group, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive, and
three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board and the Board committees, and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Board committees’ meetings during the year are set out below:

AN F I E B A R S R I UL oK
o7 HAER L BN A R SR - A I
A £ 8 R Sr SR L DA B 3 SR AT
BB AN T Z WK

o Z ALK

AR T AN A w2 SR R A
DA O 2 2 @ TR B A 4R ) 2685 10 B A6 8 T AR
Bl MP T EFAB I FATEFZ
Yt AL A o LA SRR A A DA AR B AR 2 A
A J e T g A S ) B

RE_F_—FNMA=tH EHGgh LtLESF
AL RN ZRMATHE SR (Kb — & B AL E A
N - e T AT AR M =S JE
fridgio

EHGREFGZHG AN URFERKE
FREHGRERGZEGER WA DFEL
R FII T

Meeting Attendance/Eligible to attend

E Tt Va Y T
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of Directors meetings meetings meetings meetings Meetings

# Him 4
HHIEA EHEER ZHEEE ZHEER  ZHEOR ' N
Executive Directors WiTES
Lai Sau Him Brak Sl6 NAREM  NAREA  NAREM 0/1
Li Tung Lok 2% [F] 4 36 N/ARE 22 NIARE 0/1
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick YT 36 NAAEE  NAREH  NAREH 11
Tung Siu Ching EVN 66  NAKREA  NAKNEH  NAKREH 11
Wong Ka Lok Andrew (Note /) HRY () 00  N/AREM N/A R N/A R 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors . JEHL17 # %
Chu Chun On Franco R 6/6 212 212 22 01
Chung Hoi Yan HEoL B 6/6 212 22 22 01
Liu Rongrui Bk 5 6/6 212 22 212 01
Note: Wit 7t

1. Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew was resigned on § May 2020.
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Code provision A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that
the Chairman of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting of the Company and non-executive Director should
attend general meetings of the Company. Owing to other business
engagements and evolving coronavirus (COVID-19) situation, the
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chu Chun On Franco, Ms. Chung
Hoi Yan and Mr. Liu Rongrui were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 October 2020.
However, the senior management and the executive Directors of
the Company subsequently reported to them on the enquiries from
the shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
for them to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders of the Company.

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience
in corporate management, strategic planning, legal, accounting
and financial matters. Of the seven Directors, one independent
non-executive Directors are qualified accountants.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors” section on this annual report. In addition,
a list containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Board has complied with the Listing Rules in having at
least three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Board has assessed the independence of all of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(i1) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members of
the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES" MEETINGS
In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds at least
two meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of the executive Director.

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis. The bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) allow Board
meetings to be conducted by means of a conference telephone or
similar communications equipment by means of which all persons
participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
Also, a resolution in writing signed by each of the Directors for
the time being in the relevant territories shall, provided such
Directors would constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board
convened to consider the resolution, be valid and effectual.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board and Board committees’
meetings and reasonable notice for non-regular Board and
Board committees’ meetings are given to all Directors/committee
members so as to ensure that each of them had an opportunity
to attend the meetings. The company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board
and Board committees in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying meeting papers are sent in full
to all Directors/committee members at least 3 days before the date
of meetings.

After the Board and Board committees’ meeting, draft minutes are
circulated to all Directors/committees members for their comment
before execution and approval. All minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and available for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice given by the Directors/committee
members.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Li Tung Lok has been the Chairman of the Board since the
establishment of the Company in January 1989. Mr. Li has also
served as the Chief Executive since January 1989 (except for
the period from February 2004 to December 2008). Being the
founder of the Group, Mr. Li’s industry expertise and detailed
understanding of the Company’s operations is highly regarded by
the Company. Accordingly, vesting the roles of Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive in Mr. Li adds significant value to the
Company’s business growth while enhancing the efficiency of the
decision-making process in response to the changing environment.
Given all major decisions are reserved to the Board and three out
of seven Board members are independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers that there is an adequate balance of power
and authority in place between the Board and the management of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of
not more than three years, subject to retirement and re-election
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT AND
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the bye-laws of the Company, half of the Directors
(excluding Director(s) holding office as executive chairman and/
or managing director, who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law,
exempted from retirement by rotation) shall retire from office at
each annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible
for re-election. As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li
Tung Lok is not subject to retirement by rotation. In order to
comply with Code provision A.4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to
voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three years.
At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Li Tung Lok will voluntarily retire from office and will be re-
elected as an executive Director.
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The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as
its managing director.

A retiring Director is eligible for re-election and the re-election
of retiring Directors at general meetings is dealt with by
separate individual resolutions. Where vacancies arise at the
Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board
for consideration and approval. The Shareholders may propose
a candidate for election as a Director in accordance with the
Bye-laws. The procedures for such proposal are posted on the
website of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Board was informed of updates of current Listing Rules,
accounting practices and disclosure requirements as and when
necessary.

The Directors understand the need to continue to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills for making contributions to
the Company. During the year ended 30 April 2021, the Directors
attended external seminars and read materials on topics relevant
to their duties as Directors. The Directors have been required to
provide the Company with their training records on an annual
basis, and such records are maintained by the Company Secretary.
In addition, the Directors also disclose to the Company their
interests as directors or other offices in other public companies
in a timely manner and update the Company on any subsequent
changes.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for dealings in
the securities of the Company by Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year under review.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through adherence to proper Board procedures and the timely
preparation and dissemination of meeting agendas and papers
to the Directors. Minutes of all Board and Board committees’
meetings are prepared and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached by the Board or Board committees. All draft and final
minutes of Board and Board committees’ meetings are sent to the
Directors and committee members respectively for comments and
are available for inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with all obligations under the Listing Rules
and The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in
the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination of the same to the
Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group’s securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are complied and, where required, reported in the
annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. All
members of the Board have access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretary. Mr. Chung Yuk Lun was the Company
Secretary of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group’s affairs. The Company Secretary confirmed that he has
complied with all the required qualifications, experience and
training requirements of the Listing Rules.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The annual and interim results of the Group are published in a
timely manner, within three months and two months respectively
of the year end and the half year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
records are kept so that the financial statements can be prepared
in accordance with the appropriate accounting policies, applicable
accounting standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
under review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- ensure that they are prepared on a going concern basis.

Senior management of the Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
business activities and development of the Group in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”), regarding their reporting
responsibility is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000. As at
30 April 2021, the Audit Committee has consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chung Hoi Yan
(being the Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Chu Chun On
Franco and Mr. Liu Rongrui. Ms. Chung Hoi Yan is a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in accounting, audit and
financial matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent
with those set out in the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

. overseeing the relationship between the Group and its
external auditor;

. reviewing the appointment of the external auditor to ensure
continuing auditor’s independence;

. reviewing the Group’s preliminary results, interim results
and annual financial statements;

. monitoring the corporate governance of the Group
including compliance with statutory and the Listing Rules
requirements; and

. assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by
providing an independent review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting system, and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The annual report for the year ended 30 April 2021 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee include:

- Meeting with the Chief Executive and senior management
of the Company from time to time to review the interim
and final results, the interim report and annual report and
other financial, internal control, corporate governance
and risk management matters of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board;

- Considering and discussing the annual and interim reports
with a view to ensuring that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards;

= Meeting with the external auditor, HLB, to consider
the reports of HLB on the scope, strategy, progress
and outcome of its independent annual audit of the
consolidated financial statements, discuss its annual audit
of the consolidated financial statements (in each case
without the Company’s management being present); and

- Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
maintaining an effective system of internal control.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year the engagement letter from the
external auditor confirming their independence and objectivity
and holds meetings with representatives of the external auditor to
consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and retention of the external auditor.
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The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of HLB for the
various services listed below is as follows:

- Audit services — include audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by the
external auditor.

- Non-audit services — include services that would normally
be provided by an external auditor but not generally
included in audit services.

- Taxation related services — include all tax compliance and
tax planning services.

For the year ended 30 April 2021, a remuneration of HK$0.87
million was payable to HLB for the provision of audit services to
the Group.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006.
As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
has consisted of one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok,
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu
Rongrui (being the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Ms. Chung Hoi Yan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration;

- reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included:

- determining the remuneration package of newly appointed
Director and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The fees of the Directors and emolument of senior management
are determined with reference to their respective duties and
responsibilities, expertise and experience in the industry,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing
market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to determine
the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company is delegated to the Remuneration Committee.

BOARD NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in January 2006. As
at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee has
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. Chung Hoi Yan (being the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Mr. Liu Rongrui.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
reviewed and revised with reference to the CG Code and are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the

Board on the candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular, the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive.

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included:

- identifying candidates suitably qualified to be appointed
as executive director of the Company and assessing his
independence pursuant to the requirement under the
Listing Rules;

- approving for nomination of candidates as executive
Director and making recommendation to the Board for
approval of appointment; and

- reviewing the annual confirmation of independence
submitted by the independent non-executive Directors and
assessing their independence.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed its practices
on Board diversity, formalised and adopted a policy by the Board
which recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Board’s nominations and appointments will continue to be
made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to
time, with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of
diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and specific needs from time to time, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience.

The Board diversity policy is posted on the website of the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the policy and monitoring the progress on achieving the
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure its effectiveness
and application.

The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board
as at the date of this annual report:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to
establish and maintain a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system to ensure the smooth running of
operations, safeguard the Group’s assets and the Shareholders’
interest as well as to ensure the reliability of financial statements
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In devising
risk management and internal controls, the Group has regard to
evaluate and determinate the nature and extent of the risk, the
likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of
risk management and internal control is designed to manage, but
not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute, assurance against
the risk of material misstatement, fraud or loss.

During the year, the Board delegated the management to evaluate
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system. The management would
from time to time report the identified deficiencies to the Audit
Committee of the Company for recommendations. An annual
review of the risk management and internal control system would
be performed by the Board to ensure all significant risks are under
proper control.

The Group has engaged an independent internal control review
advisor (the “Internal Control Advisor”) to carry out the internal
audit function of the Group. Review of the Group’s internal
controls covered major financial, operational and compliance
controls, as well as risk management functions of different
systems has been performed on a systematic rotational basis on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. During the
risk assessment process, the Internal Control Advisor interviewed
the relevant personnel and identified the business objectives and
significant risks of the Group. A risk management review and
internal audit report prepared by the Internal Control Advisor
which sets out the risks, issues and recommended action plan was
presented to the Board for review and endorsement. The Board
considered that significant risks of the Group were managed
within the acceptable level and the management will continue to
monitor the residual risks and report to the Board on ongoing
basis.

For the year ended 30 April 2021, the Board have reviewed the
risk management and internal control system and procedures and
they consider them effective and adequate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental awareness for the employees. The Group
implements green office practices which encourage the employees
to make use of the e-statement or scanning copies, double-sided
printing and copying, setting up of recycle boxes for reducing
and disposing of waste. The Group is committed to reduce the
green-house emissions by turning off idle office lightings, air-
conditioning and other equipment after the standard working
hours. The Group regularly reviews its environmental practice to
make further improvement.

Further details will be disclosed in the Company’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2021 to be published within three
months from the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communications with the investment community when the interim
and year end financial results are announced and during the
course of the year. A policy on shareholders’ communication,
which is available on the Company’s website, was adopted and is
subject to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Group to the Shareholders through the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. A
copy of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, the directors of a company, notwithstanding anything in
its bye-laws shall, on the requisition of members of the company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the company as at the
date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting of the company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the company, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.
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All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided on a
poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary and scrutinised
by the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. The
results of the poll are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Regularly updated financial, business
and other information about the Group is made available on the
Company’s website for the Shareholders and stakeholders.

The Directors are requested and encouraged to attend
shareholders’ meetings albeit unforeseen circumstances which
might prevent the Directors from attending such meetings.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Enquiries,
comments and suggestions to the Board or the Company are
welcome and can be addressed to the Company Secretary by
mail to 8/F., Hale Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong or by email at
ir@qplhk.com.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale
of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related
products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 51.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year, the
material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this annual report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(a)  Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”;

(b) The Group’s risk management framework, the principal
risks and the controls in place — “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Directors’ Report”;

(c) Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement”;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” and “Chairman’s Statement”;

(e) Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance — “Corporate Governance Report”;

) Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Independent Auditors’ Report”; and

(2) An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Directors’ Report”.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to
the Shareholders as at 30 April 2021.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i1) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors of the Company established a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) in January 2019. The Company endeavours
to maintain adequate working capital to develop and operate
the business of the Group and to provide stable and sustainable
returns to the shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take
into account, among other things, the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of
the Group, the general market conditions, any working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
development plans of the Group, the liquidity position of the
Group, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, the
statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time and any other relevant factors that the Board

may consider relevant.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution record
in the past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of
dividends may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda
and the Bye-laws and any other applicable laws and regulations.
The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend,
modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or
in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
continues to provide training for its staff to enhance technical
and product knowledge as well as knowledge of industry quality
standards. The Group maintains good working relationships with
its employees and has not experienced any material disruption of
its normal business operations due to strikes or labour disputes.
The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with our business partners, which including the
Group’s customers and suppliers. The Group believes that a
healthy relationship can be build up by providing better products
and enhanced services to the customers, maintaining an effective
communication channel to the employees and collaborating with
key suppliers.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by our Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

RELIANCE ON MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 58% (2020: 55%) of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 18% (2020: 15%) of total sales. If any of these
customers ceases to do business with the Group, or substantially
reduces the volume of its business with the Group and if the
Group is unable to secure new customers with similar sales volume
and profit margin, the Group’s business, results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected.

RELIANCE ON LIMITED NUMBER OF SUPPLIERS
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 66% (2020: 67%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 19% (2020: 20%) of total purchases.
If any of these suppliers do not continue to supply materials to
the Group at favourable or similar prices or at all, the Group
may not be able to find another suitable replacement supplier in a
timely manner or on terms acceptable to the Group or at all, and
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk mainly arises from fluctuation in quoted market
price of the Group’s investment in financial assets. The Group
is exposed to equity price risk through its financial assets at
FVTPL. The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL have significant
concentration of price risk in the Hong Kong stock market.
The Group counter the equity price risk by ensuring a board
diversification of the Group’s investment portfolio and ensuring
the investment portfolio are frequently reviewed and monitored.

e}

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ¥

3 M B B A e

A G ) 2 BB IR DL~ AR SR R B T S
52 K B B A 1 S e m A B 2 JE B
AHEENE R B DUT B AR S Bk 2 3 B B
Fe e RE M o BR T SCHIR AN BoE A H At A
V) S 8 2 A B R Sl AN R E R AR AT RE B
HOR 2 R B B A e 1

KL EEP

AR > I AREE L KEF W E S LA
A B A A58% ( L A 155% ) &
] f K % P 188 B 4000 8 B A0 18% (=& —
T 15%) AR E R P &KL AL E 2
EHAERG KR DAL Z EHE DR
A1 A B2 [ K B 47 188 0 AH [R]85 K R 2R 2
K QI AREE 2 T~ 4848 28 45 K B Ik O =k
o 37 3| TR R 2 o

A 38 A B 3t ME v

A 45 18 1) TR R 2 IR A L A0 4G AR AR R R
AR R 66% ( N FAE 1 67%) K In) fix KAl
JE 7 2 PR A A PR IS AR A 0 19% (T AR
20% ) o il AT 0] 3% % {1k ME 7 S P4 4 DA A R S
DL AR A% B A R 3 B TR RL P A A s AR 4R
B4 i R B AR AN 4 T N] 4 A2 2 I R AR A A
A A S B B N R AR 2 2
s~ R 2 A N A ES R O B & 2 B OR A 5 2 o

B A A R IR B

e A {8 A% Ja B ) 2E Bl R AR 4 S A A
PR S P g K LSRR /NS K i §
AR At 2 4 il T T S AR AS R A% JEL B o A 4R
M oy S R AR 2 2 4 R A B R PR
7 s e T 2 A A L ek o A 4 IO O e R A 4R T
PG A A 2 Bz 2 0k T ROHE R IR AT e B
BB AL A DB B B A (B A A B o



34

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
e

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s turnover and purchases for the
year ended 30 April 2021 attributable to its major customers and
suppliers were as follows:

Turnover attributable to: Ak 2
Largest customer KKREF
Five largest customers HREF

Purchases attributable to: JIT A R A
Largest supplier Fe Kt E
Five largest suppliers KA E R

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Tung Lok
(Executive Chairman and Chief Executive)
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
Ms. Tung Siu Ching
Mr. Lai Sau Him (appointed on 8 May 2020)
Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew (resigned on 8§ May 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chu Chun On Franco

Ms. Chung Hoi Yan

Mr. Liu Rongrui

Pursuant to bye-law 102 and 102A of the Bye-laws, Mr. Phen Hoi
Ping Patrick, Mr. Lai Sau Him, Ms. Tung Siu Ching will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves to re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is
not, by virtue of Bermuda law, subject to retirement by rotation.
In order to comply with the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, which stipulates that every director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, Mr. Li Tung
Lok has agreed to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once
every three years. At the forthcoming annual general meeting,
Mr. Li Tung Lok will voluntarily retire from office and is eligible
re-elected as an executive Director.
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HERGH
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S R B BEAT BN B B B A W B
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING  fr2 Hiids
SHARES

As at 30 April 2021, the interests and short positions of the A & ~—4F WA = H » BRI AN 7] #& BB &%
Directors, chief executive and their associates in the shares, 35 K& &) (35 25 M W &0 ) 5B35206 1%
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its B 2 B 50 Ml A Bk sl AR 45 458 o <y HI) ] 2 %0 &
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the AAF KB 2 &EFH  EEITH A B R #5F
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the W% A LA A A w] Fo HAR Bk | (2 % A%
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section ¢ & HA & W5 B 55 XV &8 2 B A0 ~ A8 BH % 107 2 £ R
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the  #& H X #E i KIR A UWIF «

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN SHARES AND T AR 2 W) BB B H B By 2 5
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Percentage of

the issued share

Personal Family Corporate capital of

Name of Director interests interests interests Total the Company
Al A 2 )

C#HfITRAZ

HEW A &l N\ B 28 X8 B 2 ACE £ i [ipig 4

Mr. Li Tung Lok
— Ordinary shares in issue
2= [m) 48 S 1
— BT 5,292,960 75,000 387,311 5,755,271
(Note a) (Note b)
(Btita) (Mtitb)

&

— Unlisted share options

— 3F b 77 I A R 3,041,666 = = 3,041,666

8,334,626 75,000 387,311 8,796,937 4.68%
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
— Unlisted share options
A
— IF i M RO 416,666 - - 416,666 0.22%

Ms. Tung Siu Ching
— Unlisted share options
H/NF L
— I b T B A 3,466,666 = = 3,466,666 1.84%

Mr. Lai Sau Him
— Unlisted share options
— IF b Tl B B 1,800,000 -

Ms. Chung Hoi Yan
— Unlisted share options
sEPL A A+
— I b AR 1,800,000 = = 1,800,000 0.96%

Mr. Chu Chun On Franco
— Unlisted share options
PN &P e
— I b A 1,800,000 = = 1,800,000 0.96%

1,800,000 0.96%
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Notes:

a. The family interests of 75,000 shares represent the interest of the
wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok.

b. Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited,

which owns 387,311 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2021, none of the Directors

nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have

any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The movements in the Company’s share options granted to the

Directors and employees during the year were as follows:

Wit

a. KB REZE 275,000 B4y )5 25 Tr) 48 e A 2 &7
ZHERE o

b. RS 2B A DB A R R %0 7
A 387,31 1A 2w ey

B ESCPT B E SN RF WA =1+H
A 2 W B R R WATELN B AR R R
R B 3 T 22 B Ay ~ A B B 7 B B R o R A R
WAL AT AT o] 1 4 R A

i ) A
A ) I R RE ST ) 2 SRR O A A RS R
5E33 0

8 S B AR A 25 ) B B A 7 2 58
W

Movement during the year
ENEH
Outstanding at
1 May 2020
after share
consolidation Outstanding
Outstanding at ~ which effective at 30 April Vesting
Date of grant 1May 2020  on 5 May 2020 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2021 Exercise price  Exercise period period
e e £ 2
LAL ARG
AER
REZ-BE ROFOERE [ 3
LH-H iH—H WMA=+R
R WA LENGTi] [WEFA Ot Sy 18} B¢ AT il s BEA
HKS$
7
Category 1: Directors
FREF
Mr. Li Tung Lok 22 April 2016 16,500,000 1,375,000 - - - - 1,375,000 744 22 April 2016 to No
21 April 2026
RS “E-RE v S b3
JWH=+=H MH=+=H
BEoROAE
MA=+—H
14 September 2018 20,000,000 1,666,666 - - - - 1,666,666 0.96 14 September 2018t~ No
13 September 2028
e SN ZE-NE b
AA+MA AR
BTRTAE
AATER
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping 22 April 2016 5,000,000 416,666 - - - - 416,666 744 22 April 2016 to No
Patrick 21 April 2026
ylTEE ZE-RE ZE-RE i
mA=+=H MAZ+=H
BEZEIAK

WAZ+—H
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Movement during the year
ENEH
Outstanding at
1 May 2020
after share
consolidation Outstanding
Outstanding at ~ which effective at 30 April Vesting
Date of grant 1 May 2020  on S May 2020 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2021 Exercise price  Exercise period period
e Jay 23
EVENCL L)
AR
REBZRE ROBZRE RZZBZ—E
LA—H LA—H WA=+H
ZHHM WA A7 B WAL cHil oA (w28 W3 WA B fEm frE SR
HK$
e
Ms Tung Siu Ching 14 September 2018 20,000,000 1,666,666 = = = = 1,666,666 0.96 14 September 2018 to ~ No
13 September 2028
# L SR SENE &
A +MEH AR
RN
AAT=H
22 September 2020 - - 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 0.219* 22 September 2020to ~ No
21 September 2022
“Z2%E e S 2.3 b
AAZ+=A AAZ+ZA
FORTE
RAZ+—H
Mr Lai Sau Him 22 September 2020 = = 1,800,000 = = = 1,800,000 0.219* 22 September 2020to ~ No
21 September 2022
L SF e S 203 e S 203 b
RAZ+ZH
Ms Chung Hoi Yan 22 September 2020 - - 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 0.219* 22 September 2020 to No
21 September 2022
EE NS “RORE e S 202 b
RAZ+ZH RAZ+ZH
FRCEF
AA=t+—H
Mr Chu Chun On 22 September 2020 - - 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 0.219* 22 September 2020to ~ No
Franco 21 September 2022
R B o %
AAZHZH AAZ+ZH
FoEOCE
AAZt—H
Total Directors 61,500,000 5,124,998 7,200,000 - - - 12,324,998

ERAG
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Date of grant

R

Category 2: Employees
BB EA

22 April 2016

“ENE
MAZ+=H

14 September 2017

e S
AA+EA

14 September 2018

i
AATME

22 September 2020

8 April 2021

SR
WA H

Total Employees
B 4t

Total all categories

UEEEE L

EEd

Movement during the year
ENES

Outstanding at

1 May 2020

after share
consolidation Outstanding
Outstanding at ~ which effective at 30 April
1 May 2020  on S May 2020 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2021

ZRIRE

N ENCLL)

AER
REZZZE REZSZRE REBZ—4
LA—H i i} WA=+H
WAL AT B [SE7AH (S¥rid (S 185 W3 WA B
1,210,000 100,834 - - - - 100,834
225,620,000 18,801,666 - - - (18,801,666 -
160,000,000 13,333,334 - - - - 13,333,334
- - 10,800,000 - - - 10,800,000
- - 18,720,000 - - - 18,720,000
386,830,000 32,235,834 29,520,000 - - (18,801,660) 42,954,168
448,330,000 37,360,832 36,720,000 - - (18,801,600) 55,279,166

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the date of grant was HK$0.223.

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the date of grant was HK$0.255.

Exercise price  Exercise period

TP fries
HK$
i3

744 22 April 2016 to
21 April 2026
SRR
A=A
52N
MA=t—H

1.656 14 September 2017 to
13 September 2027
SE-bE
LA+EA
e et it 13
AAT=H

0.96 14 September 2018 to
13 September 2028
R NE
AT
EZRCNF
WA+=R

0.219*% 22 September 2020 to
21 September 2022
L
AAZ+ZH
FOROCE
AAZ+—H

0.265%+8 April 2021 to
7 April 2023
ZRC—f
MANRE
“ECEE

WAL

Vesting
period

BEM

No

No

No

No

SRR F O Z B A R 2 Wi A £40.223

T

ST F I 2 ATAR 28 R AR 2 it 48 450,255

HoT e
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described in the sections
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares” and “Share Options”, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of them had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company or its associated corporations, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

No Director was a party to a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 April 2021, save as disclosed below, the Board were not
aware of any persons who were substantial shareholders of the
Company and had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.

Interest in underlying shares
T AH TR Rt B =2 HE 2R

Name of shareholder

Ji& 3 Wk 44

Ms. Hui Sau King Florence
AL

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of listed securities of the
Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined with reference to their respective duties
and responsibilities, expertise and experience in the industry,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing
market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to determine
the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company is delegated to the remuneration committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(ii) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members of
the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board as at the date of
this annual report, the percentage of the Company’s shares which
are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30 April 2021.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Tung Lok

Chairman

27 July 2021
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T ST A% B

B &3t E8H A RN F
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
QPL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 51 to 147, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 April 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 30 April 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BA 3¢ 7 st 2 T A vy 2 G40 ] o P R SR A 2 OH

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables

HE e 5 57 G ok TR 1 B My 8L 15 1 A

Refer to Notes 3, 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements
il 2 Bl 55 G MBS IR I 5E3 ~ 4 216 o

As at 30 April 2021, the Group’s gross trade Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment

receivables amounted to approximately assessment of trade receivables as at 30 April 2021 including

HK$95,842,000 and allowance for expected credit but not limited to:

losses (“ECL”) of approximately HK$2,316,000. Mg ES - — WA =+ HEWE 2 R W E

BZEZ—AFMA=1TH, BEEBEABEWES ST TEAT R R QR EAR R

R 7 A REL£995,842,0009 7T K TH {5 e s 48 ([ H M

B EHE ) B4 £92,316,000% I - +  Obtained an understanding on the key controls over the
impairment assessment on trade receivables, including but
not limited to the management’s assessment on the credit
worthiness of the counterparties.

o TR IE R B TR R R AN R B B O B EOR

PR 4 B 3038 T 5 B B R A

. Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the
trade receivables as at 30 April 2021 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlements to bank
receipts;

o WERMR AR ZF T —EH = H A BB A Y
5 T TR A AR % 17 00 B AR H A% 1Y SRAT &5 S R
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Key audit matter
B &t 7% 5t A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T A vy 2 G40 ] o P R SR A 2 OH

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

HE e 5 59 G ok TR M B My 8 15 1 A (AT

In general, the trade receivables credit terms
granted by the Group to the customers ranged
between 30 to 90 days. Management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the
trade receivables and the sufficiency of allowance
for ECL based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going
trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the ECL for the allowance for ECL assessment.
—RimE . EEERTEFNBRESRKES
P30 90 H o & HLE MR R 2 5 B9 {5 SR 0 -
JRE i B e B R~ R R AN BT B R LA AR
DU~ TE 1 IRF ) B o B & R A B B B I SLA B & R
%%%ﬁ%%%#%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%% R AT s I PR
Be TE A5 B s 1R 48 4 1O 70 2 P A AT A8 TR A o B
& 7N 7% R RE R B AR R A R 45 R RE T 1O I DR
PEEERE > DAl S T A5 B e R A 0 TE 1M B
Al o

We focused on this area due to the allowance for
ECL assessment of trade receivables under the ECL
model involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimates.

FAM B 1 O A R 0 e A T A5 B e 4R KT Y R Ui
B T Wk T MR A5 A R 1 43 44 T Al R0 ) ORI
P B R AL T o

. Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborating explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

o In) IR A A AR &S B OO B TH ORI ) IR
AR L - ST AR R AE B R R (M) AN AR R B ) ik TR B R
M E BAR BER P R R &R &
B2 5 Y HC A T A {5 1K ) AR R B R A R

. Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology, examining the key data inputs on a sample
basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to determine the
ECL.

o WP TG B 1R A 1 T 5 0 - AR A e B o R
A LA Al M e K o B S IR N R TS B
R BT MR > B4 A A R T R

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade receivables and
determine the impairment provision to be supportable by
available evidence

AT A J& FH LA STl IR dic B2 5 AR A 4 R i e B 7
ﬂd&fﬁf?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁnﬂﬂﬂ? (GRS E
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of loan receivables

HE e £ 5% 2 B R 1 B Ml 8 13 1 T A

Refer to Notes 3, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

B2 WG A B R M 5E3 4518 -

As at 30 April 2021, the Group’s gross loan
receivables amounted to HK$21,073,000 and
an allowance for ECL of loan receivables of
HK$6,976,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

R AEWMH = H S B R
T 2%521,073,0009 T - 1M HE i 65 5K FE 0115 5 s 18 B4
6,976,000 7T £ A A~ 4 ] (9 545 FA B iR DL 3% b e R

The balance of allowance for ECL of loan
receivables represents the management’s best
estimates at the balance sheet date of ECL under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ECL models.

JRE Wi B R T A A R R TR A A R e L AR A
T A FS R E R B0 0E - ARl T L I (5 S s R AR X
A H G SRR R

Management assesses whether the credit risk of
loan receivables have increased significantly since
their initial recognition, and apply a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their ECL. The
measurement models of ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the following:

B YA R SR K0 5 RV W0 4D e R DA SR
5 R 43 > Sl BR ) = I B (e A Y B TR A
s 15 o TR0 B sl 18 0 R R 2R o R R ) A B g
B R AR % > B LR 5

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of loan receivables as at 30 April 2021 including
but not limited to:

FoAM L E B R AR = H R R R W R A
T AT B AL 4 (LR BR R

. Obtained understanding and evaluated the key control
procedures performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review on overdue receivables and
the assessment of ECL allowance on the loan receivables;

o T RS R AL B R AT AY B SR R AR T o 6045 L i
JRRE WA R L ) A i R R % S B SRR ) T A R s 1R
AR FEAL

. Obtained understanding and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for ECL measurement, assessed
the reasonableness of the model selection and key
measurement parameters determination;

o TR RT AL TG Bk AR A0 AR T I A AR R
1 K bR g w5 2 e E Y A B

. For the historical information, discussed with management
to obtain understanding of the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk, defaults
and credit-impaired loans, corroborated management’s
explanation with supporting evidence;

o BB AR EORL > BLAT SR B T B HE AR - &
H) B AT B (BB B G Y R > AR R A B B R R
L Y R
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T A vy 2 G40 ] o P R SR A 2 OH

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of loan receivables (Continued)

MW £ 35 2 B R 1 B Ml 8 15 1 T A (AT)

—  Selection of appropriate model and
determination of relevant key measurement
parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default and exposure at default;

— B E O ST AU I R E A BR B BR S T 2
B35 7 KRG 8 AR O RO A R

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there
was a significant increase in credit risk or a
default; and

— TR AE B R R BUE A0 1 B M AR S I

— Economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

— B R A RS R DL R KRG R R
14 1 A o

We focus on this area due to the significant estimates
and judgement involved in determining the ECL
allowance on the loan receivables.

FAM B 13 G 5 T 0 e A 7R R AR R TE A R
BB P B B KA B ) B -

. For forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection, economic
scenarios and weightings application, assessed the
reasonableness of the estimation by comparing with
industry data; and

o BAHTIE MR - FAM O RT AL AR S PR R ARG TR
R R Y G M 0 0 BRLAT S BB AT LU AT AL 5 5
B A BEPE s &

. Checked major data inputs used in the ECL models on
sample basis to the Group’s record.

o MRAE BEMRE AR e & THIE B 18 A bl
i 1 2 B A o

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and judgement
made by management in respect of the ECL allowance and the
collectability of the loan receivables were supportable by the
available evidence.

R bl 1 B FRAM B B R A TE A0S A s 1R B A R R
B2 KT Wi ] 15 PLAE HR B Ak T e ) B AT mT RS AR BT S
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

B B R A i A U R R I Y
it

RME A EEEE M RRBEEES AT
AE H A YR B T A B0 B OR B R R A
B HLOREE - I 4% TR REE A T 00k B HLE 2
1] 2 S T H R A AT S A A% R R o
B e DA S > A B0 i 45 AN T A R Al 2 o A
A LA e 2 2 AT A Al A 7R 3 A AT
75 UK AT A AT o 5 B AR 8 R R K Y AR
it (HRREPR R 12 IR (i AR mt HE ) AT IO 9
Al E 5 — HE O B R RO A 7E ey AR RE R B - SRR
PR AT DLy R BB R T R R S BT E
11 B 98 Bl ABURE B RT R Y B AR S BB R (T
R B 5 2R B AR R A e > IR B Y
B PR AT WA E R o
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MR T S E B PR R T SRR B B o FRAM
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats of safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex

Practicing Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 27 July 2021
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CONSOL DATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

R VN
For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F =40 =+ H IL4FE
2021 2020
RO TR R
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it T# 0 T T
Revenue i #5 5 368,321 274,577
Raw materials and consumables used 5 1 JRUME ) B2 3 FE 5 (169,164) (127,334)
Changes in inventories of finished R S R 2
goods and work in progress FREE) 7,702 4,043
Other income FHiAth gie A 6 10,057 7,691
Exchange (loss)/gain net FE L (B5HR) iiss 1B 4 9,767) 3,751
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial N e R A &
asset at fair value through (M&ARMEFAER])
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) Z & MEE N E
Wess,” (18 38 7,982 (11,379)
Fair value loss on derivative fiAdsm LR 2ZARHE
financial instruments i 18 (696) -
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of HEE A REFIA RS
financial asset at FVTPL 2GRz
Wi, () 212 (2,066)
Other gains and losses HoAh i #5 K s 48 6 (6,486) (706)
Staff costs 18 B s A (105,579) (79,268)
Equity-settled share-based JBEAS & S DAy oy R
payment expense A5 R BA 32 (2,582) -
Impairment of property, 3 B G IR 2 W
plant and equipment - (24,739)
Depreciation of property, I ER ) E Y e A
plant and equipment 13 (8,127) (12,131)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ARG E 2 ITE 14 (10,788) (15,738)
Other expenses HoAth B 32 (90,872) (82,071)
Finance costs Rl AR 7 (2,058) (1,967)
Loss before taxation o 4 T Js 4R (11,845) (67,337)
Taxation B IH 8 (360) (808)
Loss for the year AAE JE T 4R 9 (12,205) (68,145)
Other comprehensive income for the year: 754 B Hfth 4 YL A -
Item that may be subsequently reclassified ] & H & B 75 F
to profit or loss: Har 2 HH -
Exchange differences arising WG EH R 2
on translation of foreign operations R 5o, 7% 3R 1,259 655
Total comprehensive expense for the year 7S 4F & 4 [ [ 37 #4058 (10,946) (67,490)
Loss per share BRER 10
Basic and diluted LR I (HK6.49 cents ¥ fll) (HK36.24 cents i ll)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated  Kfi Bff Bff 5 /4 A 45 & M £ 2 — 5 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i B IR DL AR

At 30 April 2021 A -F - —4FEHA=+H

2021 2020
R ZEEE
NOTES HK$’000 HKS$’000
Mt it Tt T oo
Non-current asset I i B B s
Property, plant and equipment L ERE S Y & ] 13 128,035 126,783
Right-of-use assets i I RE B 14 30,169 33,856
158,204 160,639
Current assets i B Es
Inventories & 15 69,393 48,639
Trade and other receivables H 5 N Ho A JE Wi ) TE 16 98,658 71,588
Deposits and prepayments e I A IR 16 22,112 21,600
Financial asset at FVTPL N RAEFF ARG 2
B 17 61,023 42,870
Loan receivables JiE Wi £ 3K 18 14,097 20,239
Bank balances and cash SRAT &S B LBl 4 19 187,724 154,892
453,007 359,828
Current liabilities i B £
Trade and other payables B 5 B HoAth A 3 IE 20 36,155 20,233
Deposits and accrued expenses i 4 M ORE T2 20 53,607 38,068
Contract liabilities HHAR 21 1,623 1,539
Tax payable JRE 485t I 903 685
Other borrowings HoAh £ £ 22 43,459 22.022
Bank borrowings AT & 25 39,878
Lease liabilities A 23 12,858 11,035
188,483 93,582
Net current assets Ui B R A 264,524 266,246
Total assets less current liabilities HEE WU B B 1R 422,728 426,885
Non-current liabilities I B £ 1F
Lease liabilities fH & A i 23 20,325 26,598
Convertible bonds A ¥ 55 24 8,069 -
Derivative financial instruments 1A 4 i T A 24 2,411 =
30,805 26,598
Net assets & EFE 391,923 400,287
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R aE MBI UL R
At30 April 2021 R _F_—FWH=+H
2021 2020
SES
NOTES HK$’°000 HK$’000
M7t T#T T#E T
Capital and reserves & A R i
Share capital J A 26 1,880 180,501
Share premium and reserves J& A5 Y A I fidh e 390,043 219,786
Equity attributable to owners of A0\ B BN A HE £
the Company 391,923 400,287

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 147 were HAESIFZIMTHZ GFHUHMBEKEFFIRN -
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on & ~—4F Lt H T L HAUERZRERI 5 I H

27 July 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: THIERRRERGHE:
Li Tung Lok Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
2% [+ 48 % F
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

#HH #HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A E AR S B AR

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #%E =%

4 A

“+ H 4R

Capital Share
Share Share Contributed redemption options Translation Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Jeg T i It
BeA  RpEE  EARR ik Wi RENGH  RiHER At
HK$000  HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000
T Tt T T Tk T Tk T
(Note a)
(HMfita)
At 30 April 2019 REZF—NFENA=1H 180,501 696,688 95,726 12,310 35,641 5,752 (558,841) 467,777
Loss for the year A = - - - = = (68,145)  (68,145)
Other comprehensive expense A4 FE A AT 5
for the year - - - - 655 - 655
Total comprehensive expense AR AT B AR
for the year - - - - - 055 (68,145) (67,490)
At 30 April 2020 and _?_#@H +H
1 May 2020 CEZEFEHA-RA 180,501 696,688 95,726 12,310 35,641 6,407 (626,986) 400,287
Loss for the year AEEER - - - = = = (12,205)  (12,205)
Other comprehensive income AN A ERA
for the year - - - - - 1,259 - 1,259
Total comprehensive expense A A T S
for the year - - - - - 125 (12,205 (10,946)
Lapse of share option it R 2 = = = = (19,040) = 19,040 =
Recognition of equity settled TERR I A S 5 LR B
share-based payment expense HEREZ A X - - - - 2,582 - = 2,582
Capital reorganisation (Note 26) MR AL (I 3126) (178,621) - 178,621 = = = = =
At 30 April 2021 REZZ—FNA=+H 1,880 696,688 274,347 12,310 19,183 7,666 (620,151) 391,923
Note: Btat
(a) Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the (a) A R[] 5 45 4 I [ A 2 ) 3K 3 i BT A5 AR

consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s ordinary
shares over the par value of respective repurchased shares.

S R I W [ B 3 TH {2 B 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
o ﬁ%{}lhii%

For the year ended 30 April 2021 # %

4R A = IRAESE

2021 2020
RO TR R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt 7 Tt Tt
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R RH
Loss before taxation B Bt i s 1R (11,845) (67,337)
Adjustments for: iR
Interest income FE WA (1,671) (1,648)
Finance costs il A 7 2,058 1,967
Depreciation of property, plant and I ERRE Y E A
equipment 13 8,127 12,131
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i IRE G e 2 I g 14 10,788 15,738
Impairment of property, plant and Y3 - B IR IE
equipment 13 - 24,739
Realised (gain)/loss on financial asset ?’”/\fﬁﬁﬁ]\?ﬁ ﬁ ZEREE
at FVTPL CaB (i) iR (212) 2,066
Net fair value (gain)/loss on /\ﬁﬁ nJr]\T B 25 2 4 Rl
financial asset at FVTPL N RE (as) R EE (7,982) 11,379
Fair value loss on derivative A4 TR 2 A RMER
financial instruments 696 -
Transaction costs for issuing BRAYT A T HLFB 40 A B 0 BE AT
convertible bonds relating to A B 5 2 28 5 AR
the derivative component 8 =
Equity-settled share-based A 5 5 DA 3 2 B R 2
payment expenses A5F 3K Bl 32 2,582 -
Allowance for expected credit losses JRE W B HiR B T A B
on trade receivables Ik 15 955 A 6 1,383 750
Allowance for expected credit losses JRE A B 3K 1 TE A
on loan receivables I P54 A 6 5,055 912
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance for) HAth flE i 3 JE 1) 78 1 15 & 5 18
expected credit losses on other A (AR
receivables 6 48 (824)
Gain on disposal of property, Y B R 2
plant and equipment, net i %5 ¥ AR 6 = 27)
Gain on disposal of Al RE 2 i R
right-of-use assets, net 6 - (105)
Operating cash outflows before Kt & E 2 HH
movements in working capital BB 2 9,030 (259)
Increase in inventories A7 & 1 (20,754) (3,152)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B2 Sy B LA 1 iRk T
other receivables () (28,453) 38,044
Decrease in loan receivables JRE WAz B K {Jjé'J‘ 1,087 679
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and e 4 BOFEAT R (B0m) b
prepayments (560) 1,085
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 T HoA E A ?K H '“ﬁ)'JD 15,922 2,481
Increase in deposits and accrued expenses % 4 & JE 1 2 F 44 15,539 2,997
Increase in contract liabilities HHIAEERE 84 1,539
Cash (used in)/generated from operations %84 ( F)fﬂﬂ ) S B4 (8,105) 43,414
Income tax paid E ﬁF)f (142) (932)

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REEHB (M) HEasl&EH

(8,247)

42,482




QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nﬁmfﬁ$MugI

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

2021 2020
SR TR TR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt it T# 0 T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BE R
Interest received B Y IS 1,671 141
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL W B A AR A 2
G RLE E (11,382) (13,857)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H®4#%/A LEFIAH G 2
at FVTPL 4 P 7 BT AR AKOA 1,423 1,433
Purchase of property, plant and I ) 2 R IRl
equipment 13 (7,889) (3,395)
Proceeds from disposal of property, th B W 2 - MR AR T RAN T A S E
plant and equipment - 27
Proceeds from disposal of LB T ME L BT AT BRI
right-of-use assets - 355
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BEXRBHRNBE ST
ACTIVITIES (16,177) (15,296)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il 5 By
Repayment of other borrowings 5 5 L Ah £ B (8,445) (9,560)
Repayment of lease liabilities B AN & AR (11,796) (11,642)
Interest paid e A5 FLE (1,657) (1,967)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 547 AJ # % & 25 Jir 15 2 JE 24 9,380
Repayment of bank borrowings R MAT & (122) =
New bank borrowings AT A 40,000
Advance from a director — ZH R EGK 29,882 18,986
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ RSB (B ) B #
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 57,242 (4,183)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Bl 4 R % [ B 4 JH H 39 hn 5
CASH EQUIVALENTS 32,818 23,003
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EMZBERERBSHEBE
AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR 154,892 131,276
Effect of foreign exchange rate change, net B & 5% 8] 5% 25 7 48 14 613
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EHRZBERERBEEAE
AT THE END OF YEAR
Representing bank balances and cash i SRAT &5 R B B4 187,724 154,892
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 # % —F ——4 0 H =+ H IL4F B

GENERAL

The Company was a public limited company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Li Tung Lok, Mr. Phen Hoi
Ping Patrick and Ms. Tung Siu Ching. The registered office
address of the Company is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal place
of business in Hong Kong is located at 8th Floor, Hale
Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
the manufacture and sale of integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks, stiffeners and related products, securities trading
and investment holding. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”) that is different from the
functional currency of the Company which is United States
dollars (“USD”). The directors of the Company adopted
HKS$ as presentation currency. For the convenience of
the financial statements users, the consolidated financial
statements are presented as HKS, as the Company’s share
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4E#t

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— B & B

AN A B E R G L 2 R A
A BREAT A H B S A sC
GAMWRAF (B Eiie AR
Al A I T By R S e T 5k
A R /N ER A A o AR N T Gk A R R
3k & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda > & £ &4
3 B F A T T R B 0 R A 22-28 55 &
e LR 8 o

AN TZ EEEH B BB LR AR T
LSOOG A (AR 2 (AR ) 2 £ %
SRS Iy B B R R B | AR ~ TR
e R T RO B E A R R H R D
BPERE o A B AR 22 R 2 7] BEEH Y
w1 O B RE3T

MR A LR EFERET (BT ER
238 ,Tu,ﬁﬁ%ifi%%)ﬁu%)wziﬁw
M EA 2~/ S RE & R0 ([3£5T))
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 May 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

T vk & w5 1 5% KA s B R E R SR8 B 2 BT

Amendments to HKFRS 3

T v WA R 5 S R SR 35 2 AERT

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

R RS R M ISR 9 5% - ik & wh B HI 553998 K
T BB O M R EE 798 2 1B R

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W ) 455 i A s S ok e
(7 o Wk el )

TR 7S A B i ) A 3 2 R A T A e S
5 35t 5 e S

TAASAEE > A SR T L U A v S
e QI RS AE R S| Z B RT LT B
A o w AL ' AR AL o AR
H — B 82 4% B 4 2 4F BE 9 ] 38 il 28 2L
T i TS o R RN 2 ABRT > DA R AR
S5 2 -

Definition of Material

R ZER

Definition of a Business
EW 2 E TR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

) 230 HE P B

T A A T R ) A s S o Y B o
REZR S| Z B w7 I 7 ol JoF 5 i ot v i) 2
16 5T 365 AR 4R B A 4 B2 OB 1E 4R B 2 W
Btk 0L B 2 B Kl A A S R BT
AR R R
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4E#t

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W P 8 45 i A A S o

(TFEMBmRASHRENM]) (4)
O A A EL G AR A 2 2 W T e AT
T s S B ko ¥ S

A5 w3l e 4R LR R 51 A AL 0 ok
PRI AT T KA T A o s i

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

7 R RS R e R A 1758

Amendments to HKFRS 16

T s W IR HE ISR 1658 2 1B T

Amendments to HKFRS 3

T vk W R Y R SR 3R 2 AT

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

A s TS o T R B O 5E ~ T ok wh ME HI 9395 -

T v TS 0 R U B 7% - A s B At e
SR A% T A s B o ME ISR 165 2 BT
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

T v 5 S 25 AR I35 1095 &
B s QI 2B 2898 2 B FT
Amendments to HKAS 1

o E Q1 2 BT

Amendments to HKAS 16

FWEFHERE 1698 2 EFT

Amendments to HKAS 37

B E T R BB 3798 2 BT

Amendments to HKFRSs

B s BRSO HE I 2 B RT

1
January 2023.

2
January 2022.
be determined.

2020.

January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments!
PR B G 6 BAH BB T

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions*

B B 5 R T 2 I A B 2 A e T et

Reference to Conceptual Framework?

WS HESR 51 2

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

) 250 e HE o — 55 [0 LS

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

B H LIS A R BRI B0 B

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)!
4 3 % A D B U K U e R AR SR 2 A BR B RT
CE )
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use?
Yy - WA B St — BEE T A& A BT 9 KR
Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract?
s BV & 0 — B AT & F R A
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020°
B R eI R — R R R AR U

! MREEFEZEFE A HRZEHRZ

A I ] AR R o

g MR —-H-HBZERGBZ
A B 4 [ AR Ak e

2 A E B B sk 2 1% B G 2 A TR AR
Be

. AR DFENH - HBE 2B
*FFE;EFHEH;A(

) WoEZ—F—HA—HRZEHGZ
A I ] AR R o

A ) HE S TE U T BT AR RT e KRS A T

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

7 s S o T )R AT L AR i B A
BB IRRE R E R
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statement, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements includes applicable disclosure required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories
or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BASIS OF PREPARATION

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable. Impairment testing of the investments
in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively,
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard; and

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies
as business combination, except for those acquisitions
which qualify as a common control combination and are
therefore accounted for using the merger accounting.

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange and, all acquisition-related costs are
expensed. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. The Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
complete to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for an presented on a net basis.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ K R Y B
WO ()

KH%EPERHZKE

VB #3805 M SRy > B B RR E A0 SRS
A BR B B A R B Y RE RS RS
B - 7 42 [ e AL i o

VB #2515 5 E B0 R b U (B — A
B b BB ) B — & 5 R B[R] B R E B
EE7

il 75 & T 51 e rp — TE AR E S S 2 ) HE B IR
[H] 8 » T WA i FU) 2 HE A B R 4 2 5 9 5
T JEE W T 1 i 5 -

0 AR T A T [R] IR 4 2 I
o P A 2 (o i 4 o 4 4 9 A 2

0 A AR T A BRE B o R B T — JHE
FE T % T A A 4 1 A 4 I
% PR B

0 A S [ H) B A Sl A Ak A 4R
mERERRENEE > BALH
B4 58 M JE ) A 3R A T
FIHER] o

7RI W al A % RS R E R B Y
22 T HEE £ R — Iy P R R R

BREEEAEERAERC W EF
o (19 B iy 25N B T i BB 9 HE R (¥
AR BEARAT) - & 50 E 7 RR A s 5
ot e R S OB AE AT Bl (L WV A o A S B
W B T A 2 R A A ) R 1 HE A 5
B A 18 2 S ey ] 9 5 B 310 34 S A o

aRAEEAEE RS WE P AUE (5
B0 AR 1 % 5 RS B SR B 2
=

HF - S HARNGHEERSHNAMR
2 1 YE AR S 257



B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS (continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from manufacture and sale of integrated circuit
leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related products are
recognised at a point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to a customer, generally on delivery of the
products. The normal credit term is 30 days to 90 days
upon delivery. Payment in advance is required for some
contracts.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% —F ——4FH =+ H ILF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal an value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments, of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit of
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had not
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generation units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASES

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the financial
statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statements of financial position.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

. amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably

certain to be exercised by the Group; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct
costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer of dealer
lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
The Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate consideration in
a contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments from lessees.
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rate prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of the translation
reserve.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme™)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
employees are required to make monthly contributions to
these plans calculated as a percentage of the employees’
salaries, subject to certain ceiling. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC
based employees payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from the subsidiary in an
independent fund managed by the PRC government.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TAXATION (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on
initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of
the initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from
remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease modifications,
that are not subject to initial recognition exemption are
recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories, in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ K R Y B
WO ()

i

7 88 TG 1% A e m] 5 B (E W & 2 AR
F N o A7 B TG R T A ST 39k
HomBHFENRNAEEGERESZ
B Al R (B> 9805 LIRS 2 BT AT il A
LeEAT 898 P o Al wt AR R

SRR
WHEMERMA S LTRSS T
F > T e w0 < A e R o BT AW
M XEENSMEERET A TL
il 8 S BT AR o DA M 7 X 9 46 ZH
T 355 K52 5 BP9 O T W R R 1A 5 A
EZEMEEHE-

EREE KBRS R R ER R
M AR % T o S ik T R A S B A B
BZHEFGHIPE L EWE 5 IRRERIN -
W B BB AT R E e B (A
FofE AR 48 2 4 A e B AR RR
1) EARBE AL 2 22 55 WA T 90 2 e 58 IR T
ACMEEREMAMRZ A ARESIRH
AN ER (B8 G DL A2 ) o Wi R A R
EFF A H i 2 & fl 8 & B A R E
A 2 22 o A BV BRE 79 4 2 7R T T o

Jel RSPy A e A e ey B
2 W B AR B A B 0 D O3 AL A
e B SR R 7 3 o B PR R Y 1% e L R
P B <5 Rl R A TR AU A T B () B
JUTHT > 5 A 5 R A B B A A K (LA
AR RS PR R — R 19 BT A A B E i
B 1 S B~ 58 o AR B HoAt v B )
e i 5 B 22 ) 4 e AR 2 MR T H(E I



B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets

Classitication and measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is stated in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income line item.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9 (including trade and other receivables, deposits, loan
receivables and bank balances and cash). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4E#t

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s S L PR3
AR ()

L@ TR ()

S E ()

&l T ol

A EAR SR FEHE B (TG B
181 A5 2 AR At o T 5 i o Y B 2R 9 5%
FETHEFMEN EMERE (BFE S
e JF At JRE WS RR T ~ e E MSCSR K M BRAT
AR L BL ) HEAT (R R A o TR B
15 RS A5 005 00 [T S > DA S A
B 1 A0 A Tl 3 LA S F) S ) o

2 W E B R R A B TR 2
AF 0 R BT A AT RE B AR 2 A BTN E
R EHE SRR R 120 A HE
B ([1218 A FHE SRR ) 15 7
W H AR I2M8 A R A R AR 2 B A
FA T IE AE 2 W R T E B R
Al ) 12 A 42 1 A 4R 4 e 1R A B AT
lf7 A9 B AR5 N ~ B AN L A B 3
HH 2 DR T B 2 R AR W
H AR 2w A B 2 R R A T

A G2 [ — R KB B R R R 4 A TR
HfE B - %% EE NG SR
LA K B A5 R 09 OB A HEAT (8 Al A o

A Hfh TR A R B2
HE G SRR EENE R R
B R E ) A B R DA B IR i s JI) AR
L6 e SR A B S S0 1 - BEAG 2 6B
w8 2 WA TS S s 10 > JO L B W T
O R A BY AT A M BE B T K IR
e

83



84

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

F 7 T 5 R i

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instruments as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
quantitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; significant increases
in credit risk on other financial instruments of the
same debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than one year past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECLs (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each separate group continues to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount with the exception of trade and other
receivables and loan receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognized through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classitication as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments or equity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
lease liabilities, other borrowings, deposits and accrued
expenses, convertible bonds and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity
instruments is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and
derivative components are recognised at fair value. In
subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The derivative component is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the derivative component are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
immediately to profit or loss as the share options vest
immediately at the date of grant.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ K R Y B
WO ()

JBe 7S 45 53 DL B A iy B e 2 Ak 52 B

877 08 B

1] I 5 K £ 43 55 40 A 5 119 At N £ A
9 FBCAS 45 S DL R 00y o 5 B ) A K TS 2
it THR RN A R E & -

Hy 7 B B TR 452y I 300 RV IR B > A
H 300 76 S B 42 e A 266 R DA B A 2 S R A
I FRAEAE AT R A IR T 4 R
T 1A W42 T BIVIRS A 18 25 S B

e PR A o BN - S T A R IS 4 e
R S L R 2 P U o A O S Y
it g AR s B e I A R AT
57> B 5 7 7 i B HEE ok A4 e 5 2 < AT
BEREHE-

18 s

ik A< 4 [ PR 368 1 = fF 100 2RO R 46 BB BUAE
(I 72 BUHERE ) > T A 4 [ ] e 2H B AT %
B H % AT 2 e HRE m) Sl wt > F e
B4t o

i 8 B8 A Y A Y R I R BB AT
B B AT B % AU 0 B R A 1 MRt R A
IR B A F) L B B S i s TR 3R o i 498 44 1 R
T AL P il Z A wh B i Bt & Al
HRmESZEHER B 2B HE (ME
Wi EE 2 BB EK) -



B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% —F -~ —4F0H =+ H ILF A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
PROVISION (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or to provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that might have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as
follows:

ESTIMATED LOSS ALLOWANCE OF LOAN
RECEIVABLES

The loss allowances for loan receivables are based on
assumption about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 30.

ESTIMATED LOSS ALLOWANCE OF TRADE
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The loss allowances for trade and other receivables are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 30.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

As explained in Note 33, share option expense is subject to
the limitations of the option pricing models adopted and
the uncertainty in estimates used by management in the
assumptions. Should the estimates including limited early
exercise behavior, expected interval and frequency of open
exercise periods in the share option life and the relevant
parameters of the share option model be changed, there
would be material changes in the amount of share option
benefits recognised in the profit or loss and share-based
payment reserve. The Binominal Option Pricing Model
and Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model were applied to
estimate the fair value of share options granted by the
Company. These pricing models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share
price. The changes in input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate.

IMPAIRMENT OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

As at 30 April 2021, the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment is amounted
to approximately HK$30,169,000 and HK$128,035,000
(2020: HK$33,856,000 and HKS$126,783,000), respectively.
No impairment losses on right-of use assets and property,
plant and equipment were recognised during the year ended
30 April 2021 while impairment losses of approximately
HKS$Nil and HK$24,739,000 were recognised during
the year ended 30 April 2020 respectively. Details of the
right-of-use assets and properties, plant and equipment are
disclosed in Notes 14 and 13 respectively.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

As at 30 April 2021, the Group’s derivative financial
instruments amounting to HK$2,411,000 (2020: HK$Nil)
are measured at fair value with fair value being determined
based on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating
to these factors could result in material adjustments to the
fair value of these instruments. See Note 31 for further
disclosures.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivables
for goods sold by the Group to external customers less
sales returns and discounts. All revenue contracts are
for period of one year or less, as permitted by practical
expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. All revenue
were recognised at point in time.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the location
of customers. The Group currently operates in one business
segment in the manufacture and sale of integrated circuit
leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related product. A
single management team reports to chief operating decision
makers who comprehensively manages the entire business.
Accordingly, the Group does not have separate reportable
segments.

The customers of the Group are mainly located in the
United States of America (the “USA”), Hong Kong,
Europe, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand. Customers
located in other countries have been aggregated into a
single reportable segment as the segments do not meet the
quantitative thresholds as set out in HKFRS 8.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% —F -~ —4F0H =+ H ILF A
S. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL S. Wtk & i E R (78)
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) SR (4H)
Segment revenues and results g L €Y E ¥
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PLTF 2 A% B2 [ 4 ] i 45 20 0 T 1 20 i 4R
results by reportable segment: YES Pl i
Revenue Segment results
Bt Va3
2021 2020 2021 2020
I et TR TR e Jmeeid TEIERAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T T
The USA %[ 27,933 33,156 1,411 2,013
Hong Kong itk 1,181 1,480 67 84
Europe B 40,427 36,244 2,634 2,362
The PRC H 138,598 94,525 3,023 2,403
Philippines FHE 14,278 5,428 762 404
Malaysia Y Qi 117,203 62,730 6,760 4,119
Singapore Hmsk 2,509 3,262 255 332
Thailand £ 15,291 19,793 901 1,425
Reportable segment total AR A 43 W A 357,420 256,618 15,813 13,142
Other countries HA B R 14,808 21,853 850 1,243
372,228 278,471 16,663 14,385
Eliminations ESg i (3,907) (3,894) = =
Revenue to external customers and SN % F 4 &
segment results N EE 368,321 274,577 16,663 14,385
Net gain on disposal of property, & 43 - Wi kit 2
plant and equipment W i 15 A = 27
Net gain on disposal of HEERELEL
right-of-use assets 0 4 4 - 105
Impairment of property, VERE TV v
plant and equipment W = (24,739)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on A REF ARG Z
financial asset at FVTPL SREEN MBS
(EB1H) F4 7,982 (11,379)
Fair value loss on derivative MEEMIAZ
financial instruments AINIL 3 (696) -
Realised gain/(loss) on disposal of i &/ L {HFFA
financial asset at FVTPL Bz EMEREZ
EEBE/ (R 212 (2,066)
Equity-settled share-based PR A 5 DL A B
payment expenses FEREZ A I (2,582) =%
Depreciation of property, VERE TV v
plant and equipment g (8,127) (12,131)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i il #f & & 2 #r £ (10,788) (15,738)
Unallocated interest income A B R E A 1,671 1,648
Unallocated corporate expenses KBS 2B (14,122) (15,482)
Finance costs T A (2,058) (1,967)
Loss before taxation BBt Al 18 (11,845) (67,337)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

Included in the PRC reportable segments are revenue from
inter-segments of approximately HK$3,907,000 (2020:
HK$3,894,000).

The accounting policies of the operating segment are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
profit represents the profit from each segment without
allocation of corporate expenses which include directors’
remuneration, depreciation expenses, net gain on disposal
of property, plant and equipment, net gain on disposal
of right-of-use assets, impairment of property, plant and
equipment, net fair value gain/(loss) on financial asset at
FVTPL, fair value loss on derivative financial instruments,
realised gain/(loss) on disposal of financial asset at
FVTPL, equity-settled share-based payment expenses,
interest income and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Segment assets
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by
reportable segment:
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W i B o 8 EEORE (45

aEr ()

o TR R T 2 A ()

Rl I s e R S s i A N
3,907,000 JC ( & " FA4E 1 3,894,000%
Jo) o

KL 5y I 2 & wh BUR BLA AR B 2 8
ST o 7 ¥ 3k A 45 2 B 45 20 B 2 i A
171 3107 488 73 TE A 3 B S (6L 45 35 3 B )
P8 B S B W) 36 - AR B 2 W AR
T R IR 2 AR R W
W L Bl 2 W~ RS REFF AR Z
S EEN R (R 51T
EamTRZ A REEER BEELE
FRARGZ EMEE 2 C# Bk
18) ~ A B LA AR 7 R 0 2 A RBH S
FLB A DL B i A o M 2% At IR 20 i
KRBT EEERRE ([FEK
BRKE]) Bzt R

G VS TR 4 W 2 TG (B AR R

51 W
LA 5 A 8 0 5 T 4625 43 90 1 9 7
244

2021 2020
SESE CECRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T-#s T
The USA BS 6,615 9,035
Hong Kong i 393 488
Europe B P 9,248 6,236
The PRC Ll 46,522 30,177
Philippines FEE 3,105 955
Malaysia J5 A% VP 5E 22,924 16,766
Singapore b 595 719
Thailand 5 2,111 2,422
Reportable segment total A A A AR R 91,513 66,798
Other countries HoAth [ % 2,013 2,548
93,526 69,346

Unallocated 43 i
Property, plant and equipment Y ERE SRy 128,035 126,783
Right-of-use assets i ) O 30,169 33,856
Inventories PE 69,393 48,639
Financial asset at FVTPL N REFI AR L8 2 &S E 61,023 42,870
Other receivables At 8 i 3K IH 5,132 2,242
Loan receivables JRE A B 3K 14,097 20,239
Bank balances and cash HATH B LBl 4 187,724 154,892
Deposits and prepayments ¥ e A A 22,112 21,600
Consolidated total assets HAEREAE 611,211 520,467




F 3 S 5 R i

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all assets
are allocated to operating segments other than property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, financial asset
at FVTPL, inventories, other receivables, loan receivables,
deposits and prepayments and bank balances and cash.

No segment information on liabilities is presented as
such information is not regularly reported to the CODM
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Geographical information by location of assets

The Group’s non-current assets of approximately
HK$46,462,000 (2020: HK$50,154,000) are located in
the PRC and approximately HK$111,742,000 (2020:
HKS$110,485,000) are located in Hong Kong based on
physical location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are
as follows:
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Wt B 43 B BERE (%)

oy W EORE ()

k& B (f51)

L 5 00 W AR B L 43 TR 3 i R T
ERLIECR 13- VEXCE - R )
5 3 - WA Bl T A
FAEF ARG 2 B MEE 7 HALRE
AT R T~ AR R % B B TR B S LA
B SRAT 45 B B4

F A 20 0 B AR ORI O A U TR 0
Lo R B AP A% ) A RO 2O B
f7 418 2 5 A7 Bl KL

5 R T A M T B 4y 2 b [ R

T8 BT A M B B B 4y AR 4 A R
Z BB & E 5 £946,462,0008 T (&
TUFAE 1 50,154,0009 0) K EF 2 9k
B & E B #0111,742,0008 00 ( —F %
41 110,485,000% 7T) ©

HFHEEER 2 &R
A RE RE A B AL AN 4R [ 6 S AR AR 10% UL b
ZEPUENT

2021 2020

TR TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt AP

Customer A — The USA KFH—-%H =& 27,796
Customer B — Europe K 4 — R 37,797 32,827
Customer C — Malaysia FFE WA 64,926 41,724
Customer D — The PRC KPP T — 63,899 32,599
* The customers contributed less than 10% of the total * B KD AR SR T AR £ 9 10% o

revenue of the group.

Information about major products

The Group is solely engaged in the manufacture and sale
of leadframes, including integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks, stiffeners and related products. Since the
information on revenue from external customers for each
product and service is not available, no information related
to major products could be disclosed.

A B 3 BE 2 B R

A 45 T A 0 R B B B ARAE - LA 4R
ST B 1 ARAE ~ BOBARS - T R AR BN B
A Z SEE o Fh S S i A B A% i MBS
FREOSN % P A B BB - OB S A B
T i 2 EORL AT 4
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 # % —F ——4 0 H = H L 4F B
y p

6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 6.  JuAbIBOA BA B S i B B B s

AND LOSSES
2021 2020
SR TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Other income H b e A
Sales of by-products and scrap I % JEE R B 5,162 2,178
Bank interest income SRATFLE A 94 141
Interest income from loan receivables & H ME i & 3k 2 F] Bt A 1,577 1,507
Rental income Al A 1,128 2,470
Government grants (Note) B A Bl (B ) 1,894 =
Sundry income HETE WA 202 1,395
10,057 7,691
Other gains and losses NN &Y Y Fi]
Net gain on disposal of property, Y WA R 2 s TR AR
plant and equipment - 27
Net gain on disposal of LBl RE A i R A
right-of-use assets - 105
Allowance for expected credit losses  MEUR & 5 ik 3k 1) T A5 B 548
(“ECL”) on trade receivables (TR B R ) B (1,383) (750)
Allowance for expected credit losses M Wit £ 5 1 T8 B 15 8 1k B #35 f
on loan receivables (5,055) 912)
Allowance for/(reversal of Al R i 3K I ) TE DA B R 4R
allowance for) expected credit Al (HE Al 4 0 )
losses on other receivables (48) 824
(6,486) (706)
Note: During the current year, the Group recognised B GE A AR AR BE > AS A2 W BRI A O &Y
government grant of approximately HK$1,894,000 in 1,894,000 JC - 3% T 4 A £ 77 s U
respect of COVID-19 related subsidies which is related to B Y T Ok 2 J 5 80 TE R 0 5 2 el ik
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong 7 9 155 A R Al Y o
government.
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2021 2020
SR TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# TH T
Interest on: DIF&HEZAE
Lease liabilities HE A H 1,559 1,967
Bank borrowings AT & 98 =
Convertible bonds ] B 7 401 =

2,058 1,967
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% —F -~ —4F0H =+ H ILF A
TAXATION BLO

2021 2020
RO CERCRA
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# THIT

The charge comprises: 32 AL

Current tax: R B IE
Over-provision in prior years iR A R R A A (20) =
PRC Enterprise Income Tax o B A 26 T 15 B 380 808
360 808

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong for the both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017 (the
“Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed
at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 will
be taxed at 16.5%. The assessable profits of corporations
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

A the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of HKS$505,371,000 (2020:
HK$480,923,000) available for offset against future
profits. As at 30 April 2021, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Fh A 7 B2 B 1R 4F BE 2 7 7 o AR
At BRI i P - Sl 4 A M A5 B
FE 458 4 -

WoEZ—NE=ZA -+ —H Fis ik
G R LAEBE (BF) (5E798)
Bl R (TR B RS ]) - 51 A W 8% il F
BLHI B RN —FE— N\FE=H
T NHEE R AR WS HAEE R
F) B o AR T A R A5 A R A
3 2 12,000,000 7T I SR B i 1 4%8.25%
Z BRI M A8 82,000,000 7T 2 MHE R
Bl Ui A 4216.5% 2 Bl F 5B N7 A W AR
) A5 B R BTG R 2 A 2 2 MERR B 42
BHE16.5% 2 F — Bl R BB -

M8 B A 2E T AR BLVE ([ 15 8L
R R EREREEREY B -F
FNFE—H—HE R EHEA R ZBER
F525% o

At ) ¥ W I A 2 B T A B D A R
[ 2 AT B ARG

RS AR A SR BA G R R B B
JEH B 48505,371,0009 o€ ( —F F 4
480,923,000%5 7t ) A Ak 41 85 & 2l ik A o
TR RN A =+ H o B TE R
A& s R L ST SR8 R A B T L A
Bl TH & 7 o
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 # % =%

TAXATION (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

4]0 )]

“+ H 4R

8. B ()

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

A AR B BTE ST B AR 1 2 S KA & T
W 2 2% BT 51 B B i s 12 2 SR AR

2021 2020
RO TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 Tt
Loss before taxation W Bt i s 12 (11,845) (67,337)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits F 7 s R4S BEBL % 16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% T 2 BLIE (1,954) (11,110)
Effect of different tax rates oAt = 3 HE
in other jurisdictions UNCIE a2 (3,207) =
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 7] 1B B 52
for tax purpose 2 B 3,018 8,756
Tax effect of income not taxable T HR B A
for tax purpose 2B (1,891) (2,021)
Tax effect of non-allowable losses of il /& JE B 2 A v] F1 Bl 15
offshore operations (Note a) BB (Mfita) = 1,323
Over-provision in prior years A A B R A (20) =
Tax levied on the PRC processing BN L2 e 2 BE (M AL D)
arrangement (Note b) 380 808
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised o fiff 5% Bi 165 s 48 & B 5 52 28 10,831 3,222
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  #E F LA R HERB BB IR
previously not recognised B 5 (6,797) (170)
Tax charge for the year A B IE 2 360 808
Notes: Mt 7t
(a) A Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary entered into a (a) — [A] A 7 s o M B ST 2 B g A /D B —
processing arrangement with a PRC entity, as such, 50% of fii] e IR B T S % PR G MR
such subsidiary’s manufacturing taxable profit or tax loss 2 ) AR EE T A5 ME SR B iR R SRR TE s 4R
were offshore nature and not subject to Hong Kong Profit Z.50% T JE e R R HL U ZH BN s
Tax. FIAFHL
(b) Being the PRC Enterprise Income Tax levied on the (b) L 7 B2 AR 5 o BN % HE S A 2k

processing fee paid by the Group under the PRC

processing arrangement.

Jin T # ol v B A 2P ARBL -
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% =%

L—AEH =+ H IR

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 9.

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)
the following items:

AP BE s 41
AEERBRT AR (GEA) THEA :

2021 2020
TR TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Directors’ emolument, including RS (B A &5 5 DA 4y
equity-settled share-based Bl 2 AT B 52)
payment expense 3,232 2,687
Salaries and allowances of other staffs FAth{E & 19 F 4 M Al 99,157 71,481
Contributions to retirement benefit LI A IR B F B AR AR
scheme contributions of other staffs 4@ F 5 & {4E 7X 3,642 5,100
Equity-settled share-based FoAh AR B T A &5 53 DR £
payment expense for other employees &6 2 1+ 3K Bl 32 2,130 =
108,161 79,268
Repair and maintenance expenses* Hets R AR AR B S+ 28,474 23,625
Electricity and water charges, KB SRR x
and fuel expenses™ 23,690 21,355
Auditors’ remuneration A% B A <5 870 850
Expenses relating to short-term leases i J& 1 fH & 7 B 2 B 52 653 595
Depreciation of property, W AR R AT R
plant and equipment 8,127 12,131
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ARG E e 10,788 15,738
Impairment of property, Y3 WA R 2 B
plant and equipment - 24,739
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) SMRERGHR, 7 (Was) 758 9,767 (3,751)

. Included in Other expenses

o IYAFA
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% ~“F = —4 0 H =+ H L4

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

10. 45 )8 s 11

AN TR AN AN B4 4 I A % 8 v s

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BT T 5 BUgE R &
following data:
2021 2020
—E 4 —E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#IT
Loss for the year attributable to TR T B A A I B s 18 2
the owners of the Company ENNEIE ¥ N R R SATNY < |
for the purposes of basic and
diluted loss per share (12,205) (68,145)
Weighted average number of FA St R A T 4 vl e 15 2
ordinary shares for the purposes of S 28 JBE R T 28 B
calculating basic and diluted loss
per share 188,022,110 188,022,110

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
amount is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$12,205,000 (2020:
HK$68,145,000) and the weighted average of 188,022,110
ordinary shares (2020: 188,022,110) in issue during the year
as adjusted to reflect the effect of the share consolidation.
The share consolidation of every twelve issued shares of
a par value of HK$0.08 each in the issued share capital
of the Company be consolidated into one share of par
value of HK§0.96 each was effective on 5 May 2020.
Comparative figures have also been adjusted on the
assumption that the share consolidation had been effective
in the prior period.

For the years ended 30 April 2021, the effect of the
Company’s share option and convertible bonds was anti-
dilutive and was therefore not included in the calculation
of the diluted loss per share.

For the years ended 30 April 2020, the effect of the
Company’s share option was anti-dilutive and was therefore
not included in the calculation of the diluted loss per share.

g e A e R s 4R T AR AR A R
N RE AL 4 T4 85 $H12,205,0009 o0 ( & —
F4E 168,145,000 70) M AR E AT
A TN AE ST+ #0188,022, 110 ( —&F — &
AF 1 188,022,110/8) wh 5 » 48 9 4% LA e
Bt & DR R 2 o B AR S F B BT
AR Fp 45 1% T (E0.08 7 T2 B 8 T I &
D o — 5 A 1 T {EL0. 96 3% T 22 e 43 Y 1% 173
AR R RERH R HEM - IRER
BBy A S b — 1 T A R R T
i

BE-Z - -FNUA=THIEFE AL
] 2 B S HE % T 4 B 2 B A R A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

DIVIDEND 11. kA
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended RANRIREE F - —4FWH=+H 1k
30 April 2021 (2020: Nil). The directors of the Company AT JBE I M R A B SR IR AT AT B (=
do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year FHRAR ) o AN T HE S OR 2
ended 30 April 2021 (2020: Nil). FOR A =+ F R E IR K
B(CF R -
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. #¥ EATBMBAME A
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’ iy 4
EMOLUMENTS
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S o B AT BRI 4
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2020: 7 RES T NS (ZF ZRENH)
eight) directors were as follows: HHM ST
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
(Note 1v) (Note vi)
UREF BukamES
(Witiv) (Hitvi)
Phen Wong
Li Hoi Ping Tung Lai Ka Lok Chung Liu  Chu Chun
Tung Lok Patrick  Siu Ching Sau Him Andrew Hoi Yan Rongrui  On Franco Total
B4 (2150 #ING Bk KE4 R Bl 5 33 Ay
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T T T Tl T T Tt i i
(Note ii) (Note 1)
(ki) (Witi)
2021 It Seb 3
Fees ik 139 - 168 235 5 144 96 120 907
Other emoluments ol
Salaries and other benefits HeREMAER = 1,784 = = = = = = 1,784
Share-based payments DA B 2B 2 3 - - 13 13 - 113 - 113 452
Retirement benefit RIRARAIF B3
schemes contributions - 89 - - - - - - 89
139 1,873 281 348 5 257 96 233 33
2020 CERIRE
Fees [k 122 - 168 = 240 144 100 120 894
Other emoluments Hltm &
Salaries and other benefits H4REMER - 1,708 - - - - - - 1,708
Retirement benefit SRR B3
schemes contributions - 85 - - - - - - 85
122 1,793 168 = 240 144 100 120 2,687
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

B BB AR

RE

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

i. Mr. Wong Ka Lok was resigned as executive director on
8 May 2020.

ii. Mr. Lai Sau Him was appointed as executive director on 8
May 2020.

ii. The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

for the services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

iv. The Non-Executive Director’s emoluments shown above
were for the services as director of the Company.

V. The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were for the services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Li Tung Lok (“Mr. Li”) is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosure above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as
approved by the board of directors on the recommendation
of the remuneration committee, are having regarded
to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market conditions.

During the years ended 30 April 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

12.

A R AT BRI 4/ R B

g R AT AR 2 (%)

wit

i. RGN R RER AN BB
AT #HE -

ii. AP AE R R D FER A H
BAT BT HSE -

iii. SRR T AT A PR A R K
74 B2 1) B IR P 4 o

iv. ESCE R T AT EEPEE AL A E
) W B 4 o

v. E SO R TS S AT EE AR AL
EE:0) %7

R g ([ E]) IRAA R FTE
BB bSO R B A B AT AR Y iR
5 T 4 -

JE A A% ) HE S 2 T < T A NS A%
H AR 28 7 2 BB S B 3~ AT 36 3 I L v
LE kR mdl HMZE B g 2R
L e

BWIRE F R F - FENNA
St AR AR S S L S T
A 2 {0 A 5 2 9 s
LA 2 1 R 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

HE %

%

“—4E A

EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2020: one) executive director of the
Company, whose emolument is included above. The
aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2020: four)
highest paid individuals who are neither a director nor

B I E (K3

chief executive of the Company are as follows:

12, HHERATHMIRGME/ REY

D L i 1 4

A4 LEE & (%

b P AREE AN

?
Fr—Z)ARFR R ESE KM e T
B ESCe HfRIM A (R R4 A I
I A ) AT B B A

2021 2020
R TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# ot AP
Salaries and other benefits ¥4 K HAh g A 3,796 2,762
Retirement benefits schemes AR A H B 3

contribution 190 140
3,986 2,902

Their emoluments were within the following bands: W5 2 WG F B4R
2021 2020
R ZECERF
Number of Number of
employees employees
BB A% =N
HK$nil - HK$1,000,000 % — 1,000,000 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7€ — 1,500,000#% 7T 1 1
4 4

During the years ended 30 April 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

PEEFE R F REDH
=+ AR AL B R O A EUE AT
hEAEEHFMAL (BFEERLER) Z
P <+ A 25y i S A A T 2 R P A

L -
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B BB AR

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #%E =%

L—AEH =+ H IR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W3- Beay Bkl

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Furniture, Moulds,
fixtures toolings and
Leasehold Leasehold and Motor Plant and production
properties  improvements equipment vehicles machinery films Total
T#-
il G- %E Bak  TAREE
HENE LIES Rkt it it 40 Yy
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T Tl T T T T
COST A
At 30 April 2019 REE-NERA=TH 119,804 49411 28,441 3,445 171,629 79,581 452,311
Adjustment upon application % I i B 4 1
of HKFRS 16 655 2 = = = (2,116) = = (2,116)
At 1 May 2019 REF-NELA—-H 119,804 49411 28,441 1,329 171,629 79,581 450,195
Additions RE = 37 357 1,071 1,590 = 3,395
Disposal HE = = (15) (360) = = (375)
Transfer i = = = 743 = = 743
At 30 April 2020 REZEZFENA=TH
and 1 May 2020 Sk S S50 R 119,804 49,788 28,783 2,783 173,219 79,581 453,958
Additions WE = 1,164 704 1,165 4,856 = 7,889
Transfer from right-of-use HE ARG (Wi 14)
assets (Note 14) - - - 723 - - 723
Exchange realignment I 36, = 4,098 2437 2 14,745 6,664 21972
At 30 April 2021 RZZZENA=TH 119,804 55,050 31,94 4,699 192,820 86,245 490,542
ACCUMULATED BT R
DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 30 April 2019 REF—fAENA=TH 6,655 46,205 18,277 2,669 145,079 72,573 291,458
Adjustment upon application 7% & Fi % 1 FE 75 9 5 e
of HKFRS 16 A va L = = S (1,348) = = (1,348)
At 1 May 2019 REE-NEHA—R 6,655 46,205 18,077 1,321 145,079 7,573 290,110
Provided for the year KR 3,993 783 2,761 236 3171 1,187 12,131
Disposal i = = (15) (360) = = (375)
Transfer from right-of-use F R G (i 14)
assets (Note 14) - - - 570 - - 570
Impairment W = 1,046 1458 = 19,556 2,679 24,739
At 30 April 2020 and REFZFENA=1H
1 May 2020 RZEZZERA—H 10,648 48,034 2,481 1,767 167.806 76,439 37,175
Provided for the year KRB R 3,993 505 2,117 558 668 286 8,127
Transfer from right-of-use I {f FI & 4 (fifit14)
assets (Note 14) - - - 723 - - 23
Exchange realignment [ i 7 = 3,996 1,978 8 14,085 6,415 26,482
At 30 April 2021 REZBZ—ENA=FA 14,641 52,535 26,576 3,056 182,559 83,140 362,507
CARRYING VALUES I
At 30 April 2021 RZZZ—-#NA=1H 105,163 2515 5,348 1,643 10,261 3,105 128,035
At 30 April 2020 REZZZENA =1 H 109,156 1,754 6,302 1,016 5413 3,142 126,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

F 3 S 5 R i

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #%= —%

L—AEH =+ H IR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful
lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years

Leasehold properties Over the lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 — 8 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 6 — 12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

As at 30 April 2020,
manufacturing business, the directors of the Company

in the view of operating loss of

conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and determined that the recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment is lower than its carrying
amount as at 30 April 2020, accordingly an impairment of
HK$24,739,000 has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 30 April 2020. The recoverable amounts of
the property, plant and equipment of the Group have been
determined on an individual basis to the extent possible,
which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. If it is not possible to determine the
recoverable amount on individual basis, the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs would be determined. The pre-tax discount rate
used in measuring the value in use was 16.6% per annum.

As at 30 April 2021, as the Group has operating profit of
manufacturing business, there is no impairment indicator
in regards to the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment.

The leasehold properties were used for securing the
facilities granted to the Group for the year ended 30 April
2021.

13.

Y- A Bt (4E)

Aty €~ AR KB T Y LA AR IS B

HE 3z DA AT A AR ST R T

GENEL/E$3 84F
HEWE LA
AR ~ 2 B T R A 54F —84F
R S
A Bk 64 — 124F
T TH KR4 EHIE R 64F

RERFRFNH =4 H o R R 2R
ZRBEREE RN ERCHARER Y
o KR TR e R R
ARV A =+ B3 W 2l 2wk
AR IR W (> O e —F =&
A = H IR E RN B R
I {624,739,000%5 70 - A 4 B 4 26 - 2%
Ko w2 ] i (] BOAE (R o E UK
AR AS B A (W T 2 R ) T A ]
FIE 42 AR ] 5 A 78 O o i 8 3% 4 1 ol L ¥4 7R
FE AT [ B - B A O A T B A
B 2 m T I O o A T R AR 2
BB B R 5 4 16.6% o

TR T —AEH = H o i A E
Bk TS BRAS AE M A W 2 B
B AR 10 % T (R 7 0 (L R R -

HEVERRERAEBAREE
T ENA = B E R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i o A R R B
For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% —F ——4FH =+ H ILF
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. % B RE ¥
Motor Leased
vehicle Properties Total
T L= /ES Hast
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THIT TH# T T#E T
Cost ﬁﬁﬂi
At 1 May 2019 AR —JUERA—H 2,116 50,873 52,989
Disposals i (651) = (651)
Transfer [ %r (743) (743)
Exchange realignment i i, 38 - (1,873) (1,873)
At 30 April 2020 and e QEEIEIH +H
1 May 2020 M ZFEZRHERH—H 722 49,000 49,722
Additions W 1,551 3,234 4,785
Transfer P 43¢ (723) (723)
Exchange realignment E 5, 3 % = 3,927 3,927
At 30 April 2021 WoZ——4ENA=1+H 1,550 56,161 57,711
Accumulated depreciation and 2 57 % K WA
impairment
At 1 May 2019 A JUERH—H 1,348 1,348
Provided for the year LN 3] 261 15,477 15,738
Disposals i (401) = (401)
Transfer (L8713 (570) (570)
Exchange realignment [fE b, 3 R = (249) (249)
At 30 April 2020 and W R ZFAEMNHA =1 H
1 May 2020 KM ZFEZFHEAHA—H 638 15,228 15,866
Provided for the year A A A 136 10,652 10,788
Transfer L2 ¢rid (723) = (723)
Exchnange realignment TE 5, 3% = 1,611 1,611
At 30 April 2021 RoFEZ—4ENA=+A 51 27,491 27,542
Carrying amounts R THI {E
At 30 April 2021 W_F_—#MHA=1H 1,499 28,670 30,169
At 30 April 2020 RoEFENA=Z1H 84 33,772 33,856




ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4E#t

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

15.

16.

B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021

HEZF - —4FNA

B I E (K3

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

During the current year, the Group leases properties and

motor vehicle for self-own use. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 3 to 10 years (2020: 2 to 10 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and

contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In

determining the lease term and assessing the length of the

14. fEHBEREE (4)

AR AR E A E Y KR EAE A
Ae-MEALLEEHB3E104F (=F
TRAE D 2FN04F) B oL o FHE MK T M
Bl S B b BE R - L A5 A IR A R R I
o i o S AHL B0 B BT A R AT R U T B R
B W AN 2 [ E ) B A B o 26000 R E A A

non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of A AT R
a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.
INVENTORIES 15. #%#]
2021 2020
RO E CFCEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# e T#IT
Raw materials and consumables JE R B K FE 53,751 40,699
Work in progress 2 B 10,544 4,747
Finished goods B 5,098 3,193
69,393 48,639

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/

16. B 5 B JU Ao M Ok 4 4 B B

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS £ K P
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B 5y B il HE ek
2021 2020
SR ZEESF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt T o0
Trade receivables JRE W & 7 R K 95,842 70,279
Less: Allowance for ECL W TE A B R A 2,316) (933)
93,526 69,346
Other receivables At 1 o K TE 5,180 2,242
Less: Allowance for ECL W TE MG R A (48) -
98,658 71,588

109



110

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

B BB AR

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to
90 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for ECL
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

16.

B 5 B 30 i WE WOk 1 4 B T
%k (748)
AEMGTEHEF 2 EEWMAHF305
90 H o i ik 2 AR » B Wi B2 5y Wk 11 Bk T
G BRI B AR A2 2 R
SAHTANR

2021 2020

SR TR TR

HKS$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Within 30 days 30HIN 39,357 28,505
Between 31 and 60 days 31HZE60H 33,845 25,096
Between 61 and 90 days 61 HZ90H 7,897 5,347
Over 90 days 90H KA I 12,427 10,398
93,526 69,346

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will apply
an internal credit assessment policy to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by
customer. Management closely monitors the credit quality
of trade receivables.

Details of ECL assessment are set out in Note 30.

TR AR A AR 38 % 5 T > A A B o AT R
FEMZERUFZEES 2FREER
A BLAT 4% % 5 25 B e U B
HEWE SRR FRER -

A B T A B R T A B0 S A O B RE
30
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

17.

B B M i

For the year ended 30 April 2021 # % —F ——FUJ] =+ H L

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

16. B By B U b M Bk i 2 B R
£k (48)

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 348 B WA AR H
2021 2020
RO “E T
HK$’000 HKS$ 000
Tt T
Deposits e 4 19,457 19,636
Prepayments FEAT A 2,655 1,964
22,112 21,600

Included in the Group’s deposits is an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$2,060,000 (2020: HK$3,659,000)
denominated in RMB, the foreign currency of respective
group entities.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

AL [ 2 i b 35 A8 A £92,060,00095
JG (& TUEAE 0 3,659,0009 90) Z FKIE
JELLN B (FHBHSE B R 2 AN ) 5HE -

17. 2 et A 2 2 4 ik ¥ it

2021 2020
=
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T#IT
Listed equity securities (Note a) b RAE S (M ita) 61,023 42,870
Note: Bt
(a) These investments represent equity securities listed in Hong (a) HERENREEAFFFEERENE

Kong and are classified as held for trading investment.

b T A R 5 o
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18.

19.

F 7 T 5 R i

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

LOAN RECEIVABLES

18. MEM £

2021 2020

HK$’000 HKS$’ 000

F# T T

Fixed-rate loan receivables 7B BB K 21,073 22,160
Less: Allowance for ECL W TG B R A (6,976) (1,921)
14,097 20,239

The loan receivables were repaid in accordance with the
terms of the loan agreements and all loan receivables are
recoverable within one year. As at 30 April 2021, none of
the loan receivables were past due (2020: HKS$Nil).

Details of the ECL assessment are set out in Note 30.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances held by the Group comprised of bank
deposits which carried prevailing market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2020: 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum. The bank deposits have the original maturity of
three months or less.

Included in the Group’s bank balances and cash is an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,940,000 (2020:
HK$3,931,000) denominated in RMB, the foreign currency
of respective group entities. The remittance of these
funds out of the PRC was subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

19.

% S B SO R AR 4 R K T e 2 A B
12 T A B R AR — 4R A AT T ] e
TR AAENA =4 H s RO
B Ol (2 R4 R0

T A5 £l 48 5T i 2 5 0 O B 5130 -

WITH B B A
AEEEEH BT ﬁ%@?ﬁ*’%@ﬁ\a’u
0.01 035 (ZF _F4F:0.01HE

035F ) Z BT SRR G B R ERITAR 3K -
RAT R 2 R 2 B A =8 H 8 5 4
F'Eﬁ°

AEFMZMITHEMEIBRSBE ALY
1,940,000% J& ( =& — % 4F 1 3,931,000
J6) S AN B (FH BE 5 B E B 2 M)
FHE o A% 5% % & S B RE 28 32 o B B
JF T I e S R oA R
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20.

B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/
DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

20.

B 5 B 3 Al WA 3 5 A B M
wt #

B2 5 M ORI 0 0 A B B 2
51 2 BRE ST F

2021 2020
SR TR TR
HK$’000 HKS$ 000
Tt T

Trade payables B 5y FEAT I
Within 30 days 30H A 14,578 8,513
Between 31 and 60 days 31HZ260H 9,969 6,328
Between 61 and 90 days 61H Z290H 4,769 2,369
Over 90 days 90H L E 6,839 3,002
36,155 20,212
Other payables At JE AT 3K TE = 21
36,155 20,233

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30
to 90 days.

R ZfEHEMN T30%290H -

2021 2020
SR TR R
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt Tt

Deposits and accrued expenses e K e A
Rental deposits received O & 4% 4 205 505
Accruals JE w2 53,402 37,563
53,607 38,068

Included in the Group’s deposits and accrued expenses
are aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$205,000 (2020: HK$505,000) and HKS$47,671,000
(2020: HK$31,849,000) denominated in RMB, the foreign
currency of respective group entities, respectively.

AL W 2 i A T B T AL AR T AR
B 4> A £5205,000% 0 ( & ~FF
505,000% 7T ) }47,671,000%k T ( & —
T 2 31,849,000%5 06 ) S LA AN R HE (A
£E [ FT B 2 A1) wHE -
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F 7 T 5 R i

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4
21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. fHHAasK
HK$’000
TH T
At 1 May 2019 AZE-NERHA R -
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ENFER TR FIA G R A
recognising revenues during the year that was it B BA # A D
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of R B P U R
consideration received from customers G & A R
during the year 1,539
At 30 April 2020 and 1 May 2020 HEE RN =+ H K
—EFFHFEAA—H 1,539
Decreases in contract liabilities as a result of AR A fERR E R FERIREA B R A2
recognising revenues during the year I 5 A AR D
that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (1,539)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of A P IR A 8
consideration received from customers G H A
during the year 1,623
At 30 April 2021 WZEZ—AEMH =1H 1,623
The contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation B A A B A8 AN 4R R O i O T ZE
to transfer goods for which the Group has received B AT o B A AR R — AR R RERR
consideration. The contract liabilities would be recognised Ty Es o ACHE [ B 5 B IR I T 422 ol B
as revenue within one year. The Group recognises revenue TR 2 & F IR R 45 -

when “control” of goods and services is transferred to the
customers.
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22. OTHER BORROWINGS 22, HAbfE £
2021 2020
RO CFER
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Borrowing from a director (Note a) Il — % HAEE (Mfita) 43,459 22,022
Carrying amount shown under G A TR AR IH T 2 MR TE (A
current liabilities:
Repayable on demand or JH ¥ TR R — A N R
within one year 43,459 22,022
Note: Mt -
(a) The borrowing was advanced from Mr. Li, a director (a) 8B R AR S W 3 S I I R A S A R

23.

B B B R

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #%E —F ——4

EVOH =+ H 45

and a shareholder of the Company and was interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand. The whole amount
of approximately HK$43,459,000 (2020: HKS$22,022,000)
denominated in RMB, the foreign currency of respective

group entity.

LEASE LIABILITIES

23. MEAMH

Tt 5 S AT ZE R B OR RR AR R -
28 %943,459,000% 0 ( & TR AR
22,022,000% JG) & DA B (1 BE 4
B AL ) HE -

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
B A0 L85 9 %
I fIG AL B £ K Z BUE
2021 2020 2021 2020
G- e i e e i R4 TR
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TF# 0 T T T# T
Within one year —IER 14,052 12,467 12,858 11,035
In more than one and not — DL BRI
more than two years DL 14,152 11,626 13,534 10,663
In more than two and not Wi 4E DL b AR
more than five years DL 6,904 16,470 6,791 15,935
35,108 40,563 33,183 37,633
Less: Future finance charges i : A& 2 Al & % (1,925) (2,930) NIA R N/A R
Present value of lease R E 2 BUE
obligations 33,183 37,633 33,183 37,633
Less: Amount due for B MR 1248 H W
settlement within I HHEE 2
12 months (shown S (A H
under current A 1K)
liabilities) (12,858) (11,035)
Amount due for settlement A 1248 H 1% 3
after 12 months LR Pt i 20,325 26,598
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23.

24.

F 7 T 5 R i

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group entered into lease arrangements with
independent third parties in relation to certain properties
and motor vehicles. The lease terms ranged from 3 to
10 years (2020: 2 to 10 years). The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities
range from 2.25% to 4.51% (2020: 3.05% to 4.51%).

The net carrying value of leased assets used to secure the
lease liabilities was HK$1,499,000 (2020: HK$84,000).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 3 November 2020 (the “Issue Date”), the Company
issued Convertible Bonds to a shareholder of the Company
with an aggregate principal sum of HK$9,400,000 at a total
consideration of HK$9,400,000.

The major terms of the Convertible Bonds are as below:

The Convertible Bonds carry zero coupon interest. Unless
previously converted, the Convertible Bonds will be fully
redeemed by the Company at its principal amount upon
maturity on 3 November 2022 (the “Maturity Date”). The
Company have the option to redeem the whole or part
of the outstanding Convertible Bonds at any time during
the period by serving written notice to the bondholder at
the principal amount together with payment of interests
accrued up to the date of redemption (the “Issuer
Redemption Options™).

The holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right to
convert the principal amount of Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of HKS$0.01 each of the Company at an
initial conversion price of HKS$0.25 per Share (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) at any time during the period
commencing from the Issue Date up to the Maturity Date,
subject to the minimum public float requirement.

23.

24.

RlEAME (F)

7 A5 ] B 5758 = A T ¥ MR
I E PR - FHE R AP35 104 (—
T AR 2E104F) N E A MR 2
JinRE ST 2 88 A SRR R A F2.25% F
4.51% (F FF:3.05% £4.51%) °

FR I {5 R & AR 0 FEL B A R T
F41,499,000: 7T ( & — EA4E 1 84,0001k
Jo) °

w1 )B4

W E EFEE+F—H =B (T84T H
W11 > AR A AR A A — 2 B R R AT AR
4 8% 549,400,0009 T 1 7T 36 1B E 75 > 48
1818 £49,400,000% 7T ©

AR SR 2 E R AR

AR AR SR AN S o BR IR Se il A
BHA LR —F 2 F+—A=H
(TR H 1) 2 30 5 e A 4 30 25 O ) n]
{0 IR A J5 o AT B ST ] > AR 2 ) T o I R
FE M W BUR R A AN BT A A
A5 R L[] A R R A 2 R R B
VR BRI A B 2 W] AR R (T 8%
FrNJE I E4ERE]) -

REEAT H A 2 2 B Ok M a5 K
I B E N HEBE IRF 3 ) 2 e A A I
130,250 o6 (7T T S5 #4938 8 ) St mT 4 i
i 5 2 AR 4 B A 20y A > W) R TR (0,01
5 T 2 o ME R ST R IR AR R
HE -
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The convertible bonds contain two components, debt
component and derivative financial instruments (including
conversion and early redemption options) component, the
derivative financial instruments component is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. The effective interest rate of the liability component
is 10.7% per annum. At initial recognition, both the debt
component and derivative financed instrument components
are recognised at fair value and the fair value of the
debt and derivative financial instruments component
is approximately HK§$7,685,000 and HKS§1,715,000
respectively.

The movement of the derivative financial instruments
component and liability component of the convertible
bonds for the year is set out below:

24, B ()

A B A S5 B R 4 > B S R
Fir 2B 4 Tl T B (00 355 # T AR % 2 5 i [l
BRI ) FB 0 o AT AR A Rl T H A N A
B 5 T2 o (8 52 Bl % 18 45 R o B K
T4 1B B AR A 2R 2510.7% © B0 25 T8
R =5 O N i e e o D=1 % O E /N
AR BBy KA Sm TR
TR A 1R e E 43 Bl &) £57,685,0003 JC &
1,715,000 T -

A 0T R R R 2 AT AR e TR K
Ay 2 EBRIIWT

Derivative
financial
Liability instruments
component component Total
i A 4
A TRES sk
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
T TH#T T
At | May 2020 REEZFERLA—H = = =
Issue of convertible bonds AT 5 7,685 1,715 9,400
Transaction costs for issuing BEAT T A5 5 2 58 B AR (17) = (17)
convertible bonds
Effective interest charged HBA BB X 401 - 401
Change in fair value of derivative AT S LA = 696 696
financial instruments component of a2 A o fEE )
convertible bonds
At 30 April 2021 AZEZENA=1H 8,069 2,411 10,480
* Transaction costs of HK$3,000 relating to the derivative * BELAT AR 40 AH B Y 4 B8 53,0003 5T Y

component are charged to profit or loss immediately.

As at 30 April 2021, the outstanding principal of the
convertible bonds was HK$9,400,000.

A8 5y AR BV IS A 8 2 S o

ATE T —4EN A =+ H o AT PR AE 0
o 18 15 A 4% 159,400,000 IC
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BANK BORROWINGS

The variable-rate bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

25. HirHe
VP8 ST 45 2 OB T S T

2021 2020
I I 2 “ECEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Secured bank borrowings A A RAT (5 39,878 =
The carrying amounts of bank W A i 2 SR A 7 A AR 1EL 2R O
borrowings that contain e AR 2 BRAT A A
a repayment on demand clause (A B ) 2 MR
(shown under current liabilities)
but repayable within a period
of more than five years 39,878 -
Less: Amounts due within one year I8 : JAE) B EH T —F N2 H 2
under current liabilities IH (39,878) -
Amounts shown under Ui Ey A R T R a8

non-current liabilities

As at 30 April 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings were
secured by the leasehold properties held by the Group (Note
13).

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follow:

Variable rate borrowings 7EEE

M FEZ—FWA=+H> AEBBEIT
B DA SR [0 5 A O TS W 2E RIS 1R (it
EE13) o

A 4 ] BRAT A BE P B 2 JE B AN T

2021 2020
—FSE FOEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tl Tl
39,878 =

The Group’s variable rate borrowings carry interests at 2.5%
per annum below prime rate.

The range of effective interest rates (which were also

equal to contracted interest rates) of the Group’s bank
borrowings were as follows:

Effective interest rate B R

AL B 2 3 5 A B FE M 4 2.5%
ZHEMEF L

oA S B GRAT 5% 0 R 5 5 45 A
AHRIE) R T -

2021 2020

ESE CFOEE

2.88% =
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SHARE CAPITAL 26. JBAR
Number of
shares Nominal value
Jie 43 % H [17R
HK$’000
T T
Authorised HE
At beginning of year T 4EA)
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each — B T {EL0.08 ¥ 7T 2 3% 4 ik 15,000,000,000 1,200,000
Share consolidation (Note (7)) e An & 0F (Ht7E@G)) (13,750,000,000) =
Creation of authorised share MWERTZEETLA T IRAEAR
capital upon capital reorganisation WL T A (A (ir) )
on 5 May 2020 (Note (iii)) 118,750,000,000 -
At end of year AR
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each — B 0.0 17 T 2 % 4 i 120,000,000,000 1,200,000
Redeemable preference shares of A JE T (00,0295 e 2 7T g [ 408 Jfc P
HK$0.02 each
At beginning and at end of year TAER) AR B 500,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid : AT AR
At beginning of year T 4EA)
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each — T I T {EL0. 08 ¥ T 2 % 38 i 2,256,265,322 180,501
Share consolidation (Note (i) et & i (Bt EEG)) (2,068,243,212) -
Capital reduction (Note (ii)) GASHIW (B (i) = (178,621)
At end of year AR
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each — 8 B E0.017 T 2 4 i 188,022,110 1,880
Notes: JiFa
(i) Share consolidation (1) &y & OF
On 5 May 2020, every twelve issued existing shares of par M-F_FEALALH AL AC#]
value of HK$0.08 each in the issued share capital of the AT e A v g+ e B I T {EL0.08 5 JT
Company was consolidated into one consolidated share of ZEEATHA BT O — Bk
par value of HK$0.96 each. i {H0.96%s 7T 2 & DF e fh
(i1) Capital reduction (i1) A ) I
On 5 May 2020, immediately after the share consolidation WEEZEFERAAH B LG
as disclosed in (i) above, the par value of the ordinary BBk R 2 e A DR RS R
shares of HK$0.96 each was reduced to HK$0.01 each by WEB RS RRER (FRE
cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HKS$0.95 BT A OF B0y 51 850.95%5 o0 ) T A
each of the issued consolidated shares. 0.96% 70 HIl Il % 4 0.0 17 It -
(ili)  Upon the capital reorganisation on 5 May 2020, the (iii) AR BRI R A HHBRAREMARE

authorised share capital of the Company became
HK$1,200,000,000 divided into 120,000,000,000 new shares
of a par value of HK$0.01 each.

AN\ 20 2 AR 5 £1,200,000,000
9T (43 55120,000,000,0008 45 1 1 {4
0.01% T 2 B L 4y) o
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27. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 27. %K K ICfbsk¥fE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R IR AL A KRBT Z EAKYE
outstanding capital commitments as follows: e
2021 2020
R4 “ECEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Capital expenditure in respect of A7 B ) 2~ B AR T
acquisition of property, plant and 2 BRI A AR A
equipment contracted for but not SEG DA IR R A
provided in the consolidated ZEA B K
financial statements 14,524 10,319
28. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 28. RMBERH
As at 30 April 2020, the Group has contracted with tenants PR ZERAFEMA = H > AL E TR
for the following future minimum lease payments: TR A B I AH B A SRR P T 40
AS A LESSOR fe ks I ALA
2020
CRCRAE
HK$’000
T T
Within one year —4EN 753
In the second to fifth year inclusive BB RF (BT REWME) -
Over five years 8 i AT -
753
As at 30 April 2020, the Group had approximately AR TFAETNH =B o ARAEBE A W
HK$753,000 lease arrangements act as a lessor. TN T 5] 5 2 FlL8 22 PE 4 86 49 £5753,000
As at 30 April 2021, the Group has no outstanding lease WFEFWH = H o AREEAE S

arrangement act as a lessor. N7 90 6 o 52 A 2 AH B 22k o
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. ¥ B B
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in A 42 8] 45 0 L AR DA T R A A R
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern 18 BB 7 AR A > [R] IR 225 78 B AL 805 B RE 22
while maximising the return to equity holders through the ] 2 P 25 R 2 5 AT AR i oK [l ik
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net AL EAEMARFEIFEY (B
debt, which includes other borrowings (Note 22), bank il £ B8 (B 5E22) ~ SRAT 15 & (B §E25) »
borrowings (Note 25), lease liabilities (Note 23), convertible T B (B sE23) ~ A e Al 25 (Bt
bonds (Note 24), net of cash and cash equivalents, and 24) ) R B R ER R aIEHE U AL
equity attributable to owner of the Company, comprising FHEA NG ME S (3G E 3T A
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses. s i B 5T R o
The directors of the Company review the capital structure AN ) HE 8 B R AN R o 1 B
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors B2 A A A P R AR A K
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks L B AT B A AH B 2 R B o AR 2 [ A% 375 i
associated with the issued share capital. The Group will BEAT 0 Iy DA T 55 A LA BT A A R AR R
balance its overall capital structure through the issue of BUA Ho A (40 75 22) T 1 i Rl
new shares as well as raising new other borrowings and AR -
repayment of existing other borrowings, if necessary.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30 &£@TH
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL A T H M
INSTRUMENTS
2021 2020
RO EREAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Financial assets & E
At FVTPL BN R ER AR
— Listed equity securities — b AR 5 61,023 42,870
Financial assets at amortised cost FIE 38 AR AN FE B 2 A TE 300,479 246,719
Financial liabilities A SER
Amortised cost 1 819 B A 214,351 117,956
Derivative financial instruments fir A 4 il T EL 2,411 =
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #%E =%

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables, deposits,
financial asset at FVTPL, loan receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, deposits and accrued
expenses, lease liabilities, bank borrowings, convertible
bonds and other borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments including
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
in a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the types of the Group’s exposure in
respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk.

Market risk
(1) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its

monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in the functional currencies
of respective group entities, which are mainly
HKS$ or USD. However, the Group has purchases
and expenses transactions which are primarily
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

30.

Assets

2021

- e

2

HK$°000
T

RMB AR

¥

AT H (48
Y 05 B 45 P B R SR

AREFM TEESH T EOFENESH LT
B35 K H A & AR
fﬁ%‘)\iﬁéZ%ﬁﬂ%‘? JE K AR AT
B R S B A -~ B G B A AT IE - 4
&@J%W Tl & &l SRATIE £ T i
A& S M H A £ o UL %5 S b T 2L 2 5E
L 7 A B BT 3 0 % o LM 2 4 A T LA B
2 g 4 T 5 A B (4G A R B~
2R JE B T P A A s SRR )~ A B AU B B IR
B G A R B o ] BRI B2 S5 R B 2 BOOR
AT 3C o B T A PR B B % 4 R DU
TP B B A 230 B B 5 4 e o A 4 T B
S Rl 5L T S 2 R B A B A K R
JEB 2 T 2l A K B T o

i 55 Jal b

(i) SR
AEHTEREFEEE HEWE
EREARS FEDSEEER
ZYfe M (DA o £ oo ks )
FHE R AEHA FEUAR
B (T ANR¥E ) SHE 2 8 KB X
38 5 o 2% B [ B IRE NI 41 T 57 A1 BE 2
TSR o SR > 45 B % Y B A
BEE JRUBGE > LA £ A K% IR A 24l £R R
i

AEEERDSNHEFHEZ BHE
E R B RO B H O 2 R T (E

T
Liabilities
=R
2020 2021 2020
TR R R R R
HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T TG T
6,076 - 74,912
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s major
sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase and decrease in
HKS against RMB. 5% (2020: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and the aforesaid inter-company receivables
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss
where the HKS$ strengthen 5% against the relevant
foreign currency. For a 5% weakening of the HK$
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss,
and the amounts below would be negative.

Decrease in post-tax loss A BE B Bt A% i 18 T A
for the year
RMB N

30. &R (%)
S 5 e B A B B B BOOR (A)

T 45 JE B ()

1)

S B ()

R S B

TR Rl AR SR A T SN R
T 6 b F+ B2 B 5% IRF JIr 4 3 2244
JEIE AT o 5% (2 ZEF 1 5%)
2y Pl 2 SO A A LR AR 3R
0 g Y AN RE 2R 2 A JIR] RE A
b Jir A R AL o SRR 4 BT A2 A 45 DA
ST B 2 R AR BRI H DL
M bl ) T RE SRR T 3l ek A
T % 115, 5 Bl 38 5% 45 JH B R 4F 45
EATH R LSRR - T RZIER
R W T SR B A B HE S R 2
I ot 4% e 4803 7D o Wk 7T S0 AR B A0 T
2 (B 5% I » HC 3 B Bl 4% s 48 1% A
SRR AR L B T T 3R 2 50A

2021 2020
SESE FEOEE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tl Tl

= 2,874

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent currency risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

AN I E RS BURE DM RE
FOWCEUE E R B LR > R
SR B0 Ja g Sl A S W A 1A Y JL B
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate loan receivables and
fixed-rate lease liabilities and fixed-rate convertible
bonds (see Notes 18, 23 and 24 respectively for
details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(Note 19) and variable-rate bank borrowings (Note
25). The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and prime rate arising
from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated
borrowings. The Group aims at keeping borrowings
at variable rates. The Group manage its interest rate
exposure by assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements bases on interest
rate level and outlook. The management will review
the proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating
rates and ensure they are within reasonable range.

No sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk on bank
balances is presented as the directors consider the
exposure of interest rate risk on bank balances is
insignificant.

For sensitivity analysis on interest rates risk for
variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming that the amount of variable-
rate financial liabilities outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. 50 basis points increase or decrease represent
the management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates of variable-rate
financial liabilities as disclosed above. If interest
rates on variable-rate financial liabilities as disclosed
above had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 30 April 2021 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$166,000
(2020: Nil).

30 &@TH (4)
YU 5 i A PR R SR (4

T 55 JEBg ()

(i)

VeV

A% B2 [ 5 1] 5 ) 2R iR K i
| 2R A A 2R AT 4 i
15 5 1 102N Fo E R R JE B (F
BRI 0 Al 2 B K EE18 ~ 23 K%
24) o

A4 ) g 1] B LR S AR AT AR R (B
FE19) K77 B ERATIE B (Mfsk25) 1
A 11 B 46 i 5 R o L o A 4 T 11
Bl 4 v B R 2R B O B 4R R 8R
AT &5 8 10 B 22 0 B J AR 48 [ D) s
TCRE A 305 AR 1Y) o 18 R 3R o
AEE B AR B AEHE
75 3 AR E A K R BT AL AT
] | 22 535 B B8 AR 0 VB AE Y B Oy
2 B 6 B o A PR A AR T
TE S BT A BRI ] o Sl A AR
S 7 A B AR A

F 7 T R A SRAT & R A0 A R Ja
B Sl S E K - Ol 2 2 5 A B SR AT
A4 B ) 2 J gk Y B JRRRE 0 AT

RV B BRAT i B8R R JE B Y Rk
BE A AT & 0 5% o A TR RS i
EMARRMEREZLESAMAMEN S
B 2B R AE R - B0 sk -0 50
1] 3 26 F5 B B g B b ST 4 R I
B4 B R SR A BT BE AR
TR B REAL o il I SC T B 9E TR B 4
A& &0 A R BT SO 5
2 BT A At 8 AR R B ]
AEMEBE T —4FNMA =+
A1k 4R B Y R B 1% s 1519 84
WP #1166,0009 0 ( & —FAF
) -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its financial assets at FVTPL. The Group’s financial
assets at FVTPL have significant concentration of
price risk in the Hong Kong stock market. All of
these investments are equity securities listed in the
Stock Exchange. Management manages the exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of equity investments of
the Group with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss for the year that would
arise assuming that the changes in the price of the
respective trading securities had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk
at the end of the reporting period.

At 30 April 2021, if the price of the respective
equity instruments had been 30% (2020: 30%)
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year ended 30 April 2021 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$18,307,000
(2020: HK$12,852,000).

30. &R (%)
S 5 e B A B B B BOOR (A)

T 45 JE B ()

(iii)

A B 15 Il e

AL RN R EF ARG Z
<5 L T T S A A g o A
WA RER ARG Z S/
HEAWEETREBRT ZE
A% Ja B o BT AT LG BB £ A B 52 B
T e AR w5 o A L 2 A A R
LA AN (5] B o 2 A 4 e A
BB AL TR 4 A (R AR AR o

TR O AT 46 A R 2 AR SR
AF R 4R 2 R B S Bl > ) iR SO
3 o i I 2 AB K 5 B S i
KB S CRE R R R R LA
A5 W B Fp 2 i T > T % 4
il T H A 7 42 R i A 0 R T
e 74 {8 A JL i -

AR —AE A = H o R
B A T H 2 (845 BT #30%
(T FAE 130%) 1 T A HoAth s
AR A QI E T —4F ]
A=+ HIEFEEZ EREGHRD
N #18,307,000% ¢ ( & &
41 12,852,0004: 7T) ©
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and loan receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for trade
receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and
expected credit losses. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

For other instruments, the Group measures loss allowance
under general approach.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the
recoverable amount. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual’s loan receivables at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment loss are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for
each of their new and existing clients before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. If there is no
independent rating, the Group assesses the credit quality
of the customer based on the customer’s financial position,
past experience and other factors.

30.

TR ()
Yo 5 e B A B B B BOSR (A
e % Il B

AR A 5 BB =k B " 5 B At
JE WA K I e B W B K < BN AR
B> Sl HLA B B A0 8 (R B R B Y
[

A A ] R T A v s i e S SR 9 B AT A
Z AL T Wk TR £ B TR AR - %
HLRE U E B B R EAR R A 0 TR
i Bl H A - B EHGEEER B
W B oy R A AR R A £ L B R B
B o A S [ o AT JBE S 20 AT S ) B
fi B By K RS Bl 1R 2 £ B A i
B o H% 8 AT S 2 G B O R 2RI
B R -

A% S AR 5 — M7 5 Al T R TR e
LRI

JE Wi £ K

My AR S SRR AREEHEC &
IR — AL BB RO E (5 SRR (5 Bl
T Al 2 A 55 e DR BB AR HCER HE 4T B LA
f [ AT 5 ] G B o e A > A SR TR A% i
SO0 AR 7 AT 25 {1 ) B oA 2 8K 9 T i [
i PR 25 A AT i [B] Y < R 4 2 4 Y BB (E
i 18 -

R 4 1A A 1) A5 SR R B R A 2 i > AR
MagHEkoth KSR ER LBRARF
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

In determining the ECL of the Group’s loan receivables,
the management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions of the
relevant industry in which the debtors operate, value of
any pledged assets, financial position of the debtors and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. As at 30 April 2021, the largest
loan receivables was approximately HK$4,249,000 (2020:
HK$4,133,000) and was approximately 20% (2020: 19%)
of the Group’s total loan receivables. The Group seeks to
minimise its risk by dealing with counterparties which have
good credit history.

30.

L@ TR (5)
S 5 e B A B B B BOOR (A)

W s £k ()

P 78 7 A S T B SR AR TR 4 R 4R
MR - A LR 925 A R S 5 N\ 8 T 7 A B
A7 2 1 B AR IR DL ~ AE A 2 KA 1Y
fEE B A BB IR O R i R i H A
BT LA B FEBIAR DL J7 o 89 e A 22 At - B
Al T e 4 -

A AE 2 A5 AT A B 4R R A T Bl E
Foif “F - —4FENA =+ H > & L
5 2B #14,249,0000 o0 (& AR
4,133,000 70 ) S A A 45 [ 1 i 45 2k AR AE
ZRI20% (ZF ZFAFE 1 19%) o A AEME
MEGEETRREZ XS TFETLS
DA 51 B i 2 e K

As at 30 April 2020
RE-FZEENMA=1H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

P 5 BB 5 PY B st

HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

T#T Tt T oo T

ECL rate A B E R 8.7% = = 8.7%

Loan receivables, gross JRE Wi £ K > AERE 22,160 = = 22,160
Less: ECL on loan T+ E A TR A

receivables 5 Bl 18 (1,921) = = (1,921)

Loan receivables, net MEWC B 2K > AR 20,239 = = 20,239
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. &@TH ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Yo 5 I 4 PR B B SR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Loan receivables (continued) JE W Bk (48

As at 30 April 2021
R_-F_—HEMA=1H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B E 9 FE B % PR B HEt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR P THT T T
ECL rate TG B 4 R = 33.1% - 33.1%
Loan receivables, gross JRE A B 3K > AR = 21,073 - 21,073
Less: ECL on loan W I i B R TR )
receivables {5 B 15 = (6,976) = (6,976)
Loan receivables, net JRE i B 3K > - 14,097 = 14,097
Movements for ECL of loan receivables are as follows: JARE Wi B R TR B A M 1 2 AR R
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
5 —F B o= ErNi= st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T FH T FH T
At 30 April 2019 W E— U
WA =+H 1,009 - - 1,009
Allowance for ECL JE i B R TE A
on loan receivables B k18 2 B 912 - - 912
As 30 April 2020 and W FE T
1 May 2020 MWH=+HK
A
i H—H 1,921 = = 1,921
Transfer of stage P B ] ekl 5% (1,921) 1,921 = =
Allowance for ECL JRE WA 8 S TE
on loan receivables 15 Sl 11 2 = 5,055 = 5,055
As at 30 April 2021 /S S

WH="1H - 6,976 — 6,976
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

Loan receivables are categorised into the following stages
by the Group:

Stage 1

Loan receivables have not experienced a significant increase
in credit risk since origination and impairment recognised
on the basis of 12 months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Loan receivables to customers have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment is recognised on the basis of lifetime ECL (Lifetime
ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3
Loan receivables that are in default and considered credit
impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit impaired).

In assessing whether the credit risk of loan receivables
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
loan receivables assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is past due for more than 90 days.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forwardlooking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

30.

<of:. e N
%&mﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ% )

W s £k ()
et

AL 351 RE S B3k o By DA R B B -

%1"@:5}1

B USRS o R A R £ g o 48
g0 6% 1218 A FEAE 6 1R A e R
FRE (1210 A FEHE Kk H)

2R B
B AR > BEME PR B A5 £ R RS B
B > NI Aﬁ;ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁf%ﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬁ%

WAE (RS FEWUE I 2 (5 Sk 1)

530 B
O 4 B 2 5 8 B0 A0 R B (M
FERE R 2 G EER)

T BT il B8 3R 15 80 R B 1 ) 2 e
DASE I 77 £ B 3 IR > A 4 B A S i
30 A 1) B s 5 3 AR A4 Y JEL gy B
%JJ%FE“@{’EIEH A 114 Ja B AT L o 7R A

FTE B AT AW R A AL TR
H%?ELZ’J (1) & BN S KT RE AE A 4R 1
B X HESRHATE) (fdn - SR (0
Fi A ) B9 A DU ) A 48 B 28 SO A R
A B (i) % 2 R s R0 H o A4
B 5 A B R SRR R S R R E TR R
LA JRE S A B % M R 2 1 AR 5055 )
B AT 8 A5 F) T BE A R o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

Stage 3 (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
loan receivables’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.

Trade receivables

The Group has a concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. At the end of each reporting
period, the five largest receivables balances accounted for
approximately 71% (2020: approximately 66%) of the trade
receivables and the largest receivable was approximately
31% (2020: approximately 23%) of the Group’s total
trade receivables. The Group seeks to minimise its risk by
dealing with counterparties which have good credit history.
Majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have no default payment history.

30.

AT H (4)
YU 5 i A PR R SR (4

M SR (40
A3 B (4

SUHBTT 5 » 2 9P 05 1290 25 2 A3 £ 6 L
R 75 B I - 5 T D R

— MR CER R A AR B B AE B R AR
(U ) B BT I ST 400 i B AL

- BREBAEATHE AL B R
19 BE 7 7 A= BT R AS I S 28R ) 5 il ~
T35~ K B T BR 0 0 LA BT
Wi s &

- R E T

R Wi B ) W ek

A 2 A5 BB A PR TR AR o
A S R > 4 B B 1Y T TE I K
ARG I ™ B IR K T1% (%
o RI66% ) o T 4 B A Y B WA JE A
A G 5 IR SRR A3 % (R T
FTAF T 923%) o A% 4R [ A5 A B S BT Bk
R AF 2 38 5 S F 47 28 5 DA A B s =
A o R 43 7 41 4 M O I Ik (2 B i
5 W N A i R A ERGRE Bk o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

30. 4@ TH (4)
I 5 A P B R ()

W Wi BT 50 Wk (45)

Trade receivables-day pass due

JEAB 5 Bk — i@ 4 A
Not Within Over
As 30 April 2020 pass due 30 days  31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days Total
REFZFENA=1H K 300 1K 31-60 H 61-90H  90HLI L Mgt
ECL rate HHGERERE 0.44% 0.44% 5.02% 5.03% 17.07% 1.33%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 4R & (i) 48,964 10,439 5,095 4,750 1,031 70,279
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) 2MENGEER
(F¥#T) (216) (46) (256) (239) (176) (933)
48,748 10,393 4,839 4,511 855 69,346
Trade receivables-day pass due
JE e 31 9 MRk — 3@ 0 P 8
Not Within Over
As 30 April 2021 pass due 30 days  31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days Total
BEZRZENAZAA A 30H W 31-60H 61-90H  90HDI L At
ECL rate LR Fikd 1.73% 3.04% 4.05% 5.10% 23.88% 2.42%
Gross carrying amount (HK$°000) 4 Mem {5 (i) 70,718 11,074 5,278 8,257 515 95,842
Lifetime ECL (HK$’000) EWENGEER
(Fix) (1,221) (337) (214) (421) (123) (2,316)
69,497 10,737 5,064 7,836 392 93,526

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the

simplified approach:

T%%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁtﬁ%ﬁtﬁﬂﬁ(%’%ﬁ@y’

R 2 W EME SRR S B

Total

st

HK$’000

Tt

At 1 May 2019 W_EF—HEAHA—H 183

Allowance for ECL TH RS B0 1H B A 750
Balance at 30 April 2020 and 1 May 2020 f/\\g EZRAENHA =1HK

“ERCTENLA—HZEH 933

Allowance for ECL TE (S B 1 A 1,383

Balance at 30 April 2021 WZFE AN A =+ B Z &8k 2,316
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 &@TH (4)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Yo 5 I 4 PR B B SR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Other receivables and deposits L fi 7 Wk I R $R A
For other receivables and deposits, the management T At MR SRR T A T o P AR B
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability WAL B BB RES A
of other receivables and deposits based on historical PR R 00 RIS R B BOE HEE R e
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative S L At R WS R T R 4 1 T i Tl A AT
and qualitative information that is reasonable and I 0 FEAL o B IR RR A R4 K E I E B
supportive forward-looking information. The management JEL B 1B A7) %6 T R LA SR ST I B K - HL AR
believes that there is no significant increase in credit risk LB TR A G S B R
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group E A
provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
Movements for ECL of other receivables are as follows: oA R iR TE 2 U AR Bl 4R 2 B W) RE
B
Total
B Gt
HK$’000
Tt
At 1 May 2019 W_E—NFELA—H 824
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses % 0] 7E W5 Bl T A (824)
At 30 April 2020 and 1 May 2020 ATECEENA=+H K
R FERHA A =
Allowance for expected credit losses TR A5 0 s 18 43 A 48
At 30 April 2021 o AE A =+ H 48
Other credit risks JU b 47 £ ML B

The credit risk on bank balance is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are reputable banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances. Based
on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank balances
is considered to be insignificant and therefore no loss
allowance was recognised.

HRAT &5 B 2 5 BB AT IR R RET 20
BT 4 R (58 RAF 2 GRAT I B AR
AR A T R AR AP A - AR
HRAT &5 B AP A 1210 A TR Sk 18 - IR
¥ R A AT &5k 2 1218 A IS &
s 18 WA I AN TR o (R Ik 7 e e s R
B4 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by cash or other financial assets.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management of the
Group is satisfied that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they full due
through monitoring internally generated funds, raising new
funds through placing of shares and monitoring closely on
the utilisation of other borrowings.

The Group also relied on other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, and to arrange
additional banking facilities, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The following table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

30.

YU 5 R g A PR B SR (4)

i B & 5 B

Ui B < B A A R RE R AT LB
Bl < B E A5 0 e R BT B R
A 9 JEL B -

T B0 0 B 4 B IR - A 4 A R AR
Frii & Jo % A 3 & 0H B B> DL AR £ 1
Y 8 7 4 3t T 4 IO 9 B B R B U B 0
B o A AR T LR A5 A 02 0 B R N IR
EZEE EREEROHEENESLU L
WOVE A HANAE B > AR R A2
Hh Bt 5 U DA A LB 2 B S SRAT

AR R o SE AL ME BRI E R R B
AR o AN AR T 2 R E B P R
TEHR B & TR A R RSP B2
Z B UL > 3 % PR A AN SRAT Rl B A > AR
REAE 17 78 2 B S el > DU Ao JFE 0 00 I 2
R RB EEFTK -

TREIIAELHIFMTEEMAFHE TS
H)E A L o T R TI AR AS 42 B T BE
R e B H e A E 2 RIEB
R 4 U A A o LA T AT 2R e AL RN
B A DU 2 2 285K H O E

T RAIEFE B A B 7EFLE R
BB AR AR T o RN BB Y &
ol R 2 B A AT
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 &WTH (%)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Yo 5 L gt 4 P B B BOOR (A
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) WE & &R bE (%)
Liquidity and interest rate tables B B RF 5%
Weighted Repayable Total
average on Less than 1to5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year years cash flows amount
T i S AMiBLB &
FHAE EREEE 1R 1554 i 2 Y T
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
% T Tix Tt Tix Tix
2021 ZFCF
Non-derivative financial liabilities  JE 777 2k 4 i £ fi
Trade and other payables 5 T A 57 0 nla A3 = 36,155 = 36,155 36,155
Deposits and accrued expenses 4 R RESHE n/a A5 = 53,607 = 53,607 53,607
Other borrowings HAip & = 43,459 = = 43,459 43,459
Bank borrowings AT & 2.88 39,878 - - 39,878 39,878
Lease liabilities T A i 4.37 - 14,052 21,056 35,108 33,183
Convertible bonds [ % 10.72 = = 9,400 9,400 8,069
83,337 103,814 30,456 217,607 214,351
2020 e w203
Non-derivative financial liabilities 7 7 4: 4 i #1 fi
Trade and other payables 2 5 B A AT R n/a AN = 20,233 = 20,233 20,233
Deposits and accrued expenses i & K ERT 2 T n/a AN = 38,068 = 38,068 38,068
Other borrowings Hib g - 22,022 = = 22,022 22,022
Lease liabilities HEAH 4.49 - 12,467 28,096 40,563 37,633
22,022 70,768 28,096 120,886 117,956

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of
the reporting period.

The following table summaries the maturity analysis
of non-derivative financial liabilities with repayable on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amount includes interest
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do
not consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise
its discretion to immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such financial liabilities will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

CEE L EPE TS TP P
2 ARt RIE B ek 3 e R
AR T A S e -

ML A A SRR R IR AT
<o il B A R A B el T S A E IR R
PEm B R DL - AR B B iR 5 4
=GR FIS BRI © 5 T 2 A 4R [ S
AR DL - 3 3 58 J SRAT AN KT BB AT B EL 9 1%
HETORMEFRER -EHDBL ZEEMA
1 42 18 3 M vl P A 1 TR AR R H

g
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 &4@WTH (%)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Yo 5 L gt 4 PR B B BOSR (4D
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) WBhE & bR (A1)
Maturity Analysis — subject to a repayment on demand FHIIF V0BT — IR IR K L P 52 15 2K
clause based on scheduled repayments 1 75 1 kAR
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total
Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years Syears cash outflows amount
B 24 AW BLA
VER  HARAE HARSE S i A Y Tl 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
At 31 March 2021 R-FZ—4
=H=+—H
Bank borrowings BT 2,632 2,632 7,896 39,280 52,440 39,878
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 31. &@THZ ARG &
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This note provides information about how the Group A B 5 4 1A B A 4R 1B 0 Ao i 2 AS (R 4
determines fair values of various financial assets and Tl B AR 2 N SRE R B R o
liabilities.
FAIR VALUE OF THE GROUP’S DERIVATIVE B H A ED A R Z A
FINANCIAL ASSET AND LIABILITY THAT 0 A G RE R B B2 A e i
IS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A
RECURRING BASIS
The Group’s financial asset and financial liability at AL 4 0N S E RE IR SR 2 A R R
FVTPL is measured at fair value at the end of each SR E RN A HRE I RE A UEF R T
reporting period. The following table gives information FPE AL A E M R T E 2 A A ik
about how the fair value of the financial instrument is & kL o
determined.
Fair value Significant
AR Fair value Valuation techniques unobservable
Financial instruments 2021 2020 hierarchy and key inputs inputs
SWITAR Y e Y Je 3 MAGFS SR E R BRABIE A Bk
Financial asset at FVTPL HK$61,023,000# 7 HK$42,870,0007 G Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A
- equity securities listed in Hong Kong B an active market A
EARERABEZ SREE G AiRzNE VAUN |

—REE LA A E
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 31. &@THZARMG R (/)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value Significant
MR Fair value Valuation techniques unobservable
Financial instruments 2021 2020 hierarchy and key inputs inputs
ST H R “ERE ARMESL R R R BRATHE @A B
Derivative financial instruments
fit&mIA
- conversion and early redemption HKS$2,411,000% 70 - Level 3 The binomial Risk free rate adopted:
option of convertible bonds =4 option model I 4R 4 2 L 1 3
— 3 2 A B R O [ ZIA R 2021: 0.09% (Note )
pa CETEE0.09%
(Hiti)
Expected volatility
TR
2021: 72.61% (Note ii)
ZEZIETL61%
(Hif#tii)
During the year ended 30 April 2021, there was no transfer REE_F - —4FMHA =+ HIE
between instrument in Level 1 and 2. AERE B — AR AR LR 2 I
% A RS o
Note: Mt -
(1) An increase in risk free rate adopted would result in (1) T BR 49 4 B L 5 ) A 0 i 2
decrease in fair value of the financial asset. G BB A A SR D o
(ii) A slight increase in the expected volatility would result in (i) TEHA R 1 R A e AT
significant increase in the fair value measurement of the A ER A 0 A FoAE R R Y
derivative component. Jime
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement P A Wi
HKS$ 000
T T
Derivative financial instruments A1 A < A T
At 1 May 2019, 30 April 2020 and 1 May 2020 HEZE—JUERLH—H =
SEFBENAZ AR
“F BRI —H
Issue of convertible bonds AT A 40 I AR 25 1,715
Fair value change o RAE B ) 696
At 30 April 2021 AR —AEMA =+H 2,411
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(ITT) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL
ASSET AND FINANCIAL LIABILITY
THAT ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS
The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cashflow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES
The Group currently participates in MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs or capped at HK$1,500
(or higher percentage based on the choice of employees)
to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries were
required to contribute certain percentages of the monthly
salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The
employees were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant
government regulations. The PRC government was
responsible for the pension liability to the retired staff.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended 30
April 2021 made by the Group amounted to HK$3,642,000
(2020: HK$5,100,000).

31.

32.

& THZ ARG (5

(IT1) Sl b 442 48 6 2% ¥E DL 24 e ff it 3t
ZEBMEREREBMAMZ AR
fid

HibemEEREMAELIAR
{EL 77 LG B B 4 0 B 0 AT A ik e
Z e R RHE R A E

Ay T R T 1% 8 A B BR
HMteMmEEREMAMZIE
T B B A% B 2 8 SR EAR A

AR B 3% 8 4l
ALEHBERMBEBEBSEHRKEES N
MR G EEAZRENESET
DB B AER EENHIES-
AL 3519 A BH 3 4 AR 2 5% 3K LA 1,500
TR B BR (SRR B & H A )
Tia] 75 s T A 4 R > B Bk R A
A o

AR ) B W 2 B TS B B
I 42 A% 1A R R AR L 5T B89 BB < A B
Mg A rZEERAR THRZE T ED
EARE K> DL 2y A R ) 438 o AR R A R B
JERLB . B T = 2B AR & Ty HOR AR
IhF 2 BE AR 2 [ RS AF B o b B BUR
BB TRTEBKREH R

BE_ZEWHA=THILEE A%
M 1) bl gt #) A B2 3K 53,642,000
JC (& U FAE 15,100,000 9T) o
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
on 15 September 2015 (the “Adoption Date”), which has
a terms of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.
The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide the eligible
participants (the “Eligible Participants™) as defined in the
Scheme with the opportunity to acquire interests in the
Company and to encourage the Eligible Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Board may grant options to the Eligible
Participants, including, but not limited to, (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”) and (b) any non-executive directors of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

A share option granted by the Company is exercisable at
any time or times during the option period determined by
its directors. The Eligible Participants who accepted the
offer of the option (the “Guarantee”) are not required to
achieve any performance targets before any option granted
under the Scheme can be exercise. The date of the expiry of
the share option determine by the Board which shall not be
later than the 10th anniversary of the commencement date
in respect of such share option. The option acceptance date
should not be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The
exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the New Scheme shall be determined
by the Board but shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; or (iii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options.
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% =%

L—AEH =+ H IR

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed
such number of shares as required under the Listing
Rules, being 10% of the shares in issue as Adoption Date,
excluding the shares which would have been issuable
pursuant to the options which have lapsed pursuant to the
Scheme.

During the year ended 30 April 2021, an aggregate of
36,720,000 share options were granted under the Scheme (2020:
Nil). As at 30 April 2021, the outstanding 55,279,166 share
options representing approximately 29.4% of the issued
share capital of the Company. However, the total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue in such 12-month period up to and including the
proposed date of grant, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

33.
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 33.
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)
Movement during the year
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by the directors of the Company and

ENZEE)

employees under the Scheme during both years:

DA IBe By 7 BE Wl 2 Ak 28 5 (468)

JBe 7S %5 5Dk B At ) (5)

T RPERA L F B R B TR A A #
VETR Z AR ) PR HE 7S T 4F TR 2 B

Exercise Exercise Outstanding
price price as at
before share after share 30 April 2020
consolidation  consolidation after share
which which  Outstanding Outstanding ~ consolidation Outstanding
completed on  completed on at at which completed as at
Option type Date of grant 5 May 2020 5 May 2020 1 May 2019 Granted 30 April 2020 on 5 May 2020 Granted Lapsed 30 April 2021
CEDERE
LALRMRE
REZZRE ROZSRE A OFER
LALRRG HALAERG R-F-UE REZZRE ROZ4RE REFZ-F
AlFER AR LA-A MAZ+R MAZHR MA=+H
TR GETE] LE4i 4] ZfifER WA o4 LENFS AR B o 31 LFR
HKS HK$
7 7T
Directors 22 April 2016 0.620 744 21,500,000 - 21,500,000 1,791,667 - - 1,791,667
#R “E-NENAZTZA
14 September 2018 0.080 0.96 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 3,333,333 - - 3,333,333
“F-AEAA A
22 September 2020 NA 0.219 - - - - 7,200,000 - 7,200,000
e St < | By | AER
Employees 22 April 2016 0.620 744 1,210,000 - 1,210,000 100,833 - - 100,833
3] “Z-AENAZTZR
14 September 2017 0.138 1.656 225,620,000 - 225,620,000 18,801,666 - (18,801,666) -
“E-tENATIA
14 September 2018 0.080 096 160,000,000 - 160,000,000 13,333,333 - - 13,333,333
“F-AEAA A
22 September 2020 NA 0.219 - - - - 10,800,000 - 10,800,000
e S <y | Byt | AER
8 April 2021 NA 0.265 - - - - 18,720,000 - 18,720,000
“Z--EMAAR AR
448,330,000 - 448,330,000 37,360,832 36,720,000 (18,801,666) 55,279,166
Exercisable at the TR SR A7
end of the year 448,330,000 448,330,000 37,360,832 55,279,166
Weighted average T
exercise price HKS0.137# ¢ - HKSO.137#7t  HKS0.37H7C HKS0.40%7C HKSL.66#7C  HKS0.705% T
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 33.
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)
Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised at any
time from the date of acceptance. The Guarantees are not
required to achieve any performance targets before any
option granted under the Scheme can be exercise.
The equity-settled share-based payment approximately
HK$2,582,000 during the year ended 30 April 2021 (2020:
Nil) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. The Company had used the Binomial Option
Pricing Model to value the share options granted.
The following major assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted:
Grant date il B 8 April 2021 22 September 2020
o S 2 e S <2
MAAHR AAZ+ZH
Exercisable period T 2 years 1 year 4
Closing share price at grant date ik B2 i HKS0.260i% 7 HKS0.210i 7
Closing share price immediately B B WY
before the grant date gl Lfm HKS$0.2601 70 HKS0.210% 70
Exercise price before share REZFZZELNA
consolidation which was effective T H B4 B
on 5 May 2020 éﬁmZﬁ i1 NIA Rl NIA i
Exercise price after share ZERZFEL
consolidation which was effective ﬂ H B £ B
on 5 May 2020 EHHEZHE HK$0.265% 7T HK$0.219% ¢
Expected volatility (Note a) B (Ha) 62.33% 60.89%
Expected dividend yield (Note b) BEREE (i) 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate (Note ¢) R (i) 0.14% 0.21%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The fair value of share option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

Notes:

(a) The expected volatility was determined with reference to
the historical daily volatilities of the share prices of the
Company.

(b) The expected dividend yield was determined based on the
historical dividend yield payout of the Company.

(c) The risk-free interest rate was determined with reference to
the Hong Kong sovereign bond curve as of with the same
term to maturity.

LBy 2 B 2 A mk 28 5 (7))

JBe 7S %5 5Dk B At ) (50)

MR > 05 A BE RPN 422 4 H 30048 B s AT
i o JEFZ N AEAT (F AR 95 51 4 357 2 AT ] 16
% HE BT 2E 3 B AT An] SE 45 H AL o

WEZ WA=+ HILFEFERE
JBEAS &5 B DA A0 2o BBt 2 AR %2%2%0
ot (FE FF ) DN SRR
HoAth 2 i 25 R ERR S B ST o ﬁ“?ﬁm
:ﬁﬁ%%m%ﬁﬁﬂE&MZ%&%
HEAT A (H -

PATR F ik B4R 1 2 6 T HE 2 o Iy BT R
Mz EEBR

14 September 2018 14 September 2017 22 April 2016
v SI¥:3 S SRR
JURFIEH JUAFIEH MWA=+=H
10 years 4 10 years 4 10 years 4
HKS0.064% 7t HKS$0.138% ¢ HKS0.60 &
HK$0.064i5 70 HK$0.135% 70 HKS0.60% 16
HK$0.08} 1t HKS0.138i6 70 HKS0.62i% 16
HK$0.96} & HK$1.656i 70 HKS7.44¥% 70
84.47% 89.60% 79.72%

0% 0% 0%

2.39% 1.51% 1.36%

A R e (BT PR T 2 A R R
Ty R 2 A R o A S E AT
WE T E BB 2 AN [R] 5 g o5 5 o

Mt it -

(a) TE 1A W TS 2 25 AR 08 IS DL 2 4
H 33 18 1T i A o

(b) T I S 3R T A PR A 2 ] A i UR
B R R T S

(©) I JE B 1) % 5 228 B kg [H] AR ) 2
s T AR 2 50T A E o
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34.

35.

B A BB R

For the year ended 30 April 2021 # % —F ——4 0 H = H L 4F B
y p

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BB TR S
In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered A 4L 1) HOE SE TS M R BB B O T o
into the following transactions with related parties: AN G
(A) At 30 April 2021 and 2020, interest-free loans were (A) MIFZ—HFR_F_FENH
obtained from Mr. Li, a director as disclosed in “tTH ftEES S REE
Note 22. A B GE2207 88 ) -
(B)  Compensation of Key Management Personnel (B) EEEMANERZHM
The remuneration of directors of the Company and ARAFERE LM EEERAER
other members of key management during the year AN Z B aa T
were as follows:
2021 2020
RO CRCRAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 T
Fees and salaries 4 I 4 6,916 5,310
Retirement benefit schemes AR AR AE R )R
contributions 271 191
7,187 5,501
The remuneration of directors of the Company and AANFER R FEFILANE Z M
key management is determined by the remuneration B JIHHME R G2 H M AL
committee having regard to the performance of T T 355 8 A5 1 0
individuals and market trends.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. ®EH

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount
of the asset pledged by the Group to a bank in order to
secure a banking facility granted by a bank to the Group
was as follows:

Leasehold properties HEY

T 2% R IR > At — [ SR AT ) A 4R I 4%
HH R SR AT AT I OR > A SR [ T R AT B

04 T 0 7
2021 2020

SESE CFOEE

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt T

39,878 S
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #%E =%

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36. WREWmB AL ZAMHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Derivative
Bank Other Lease  Convertible financial
borrowings borrowings liabilities bonds  instruements Total
fii
BT 8 Jo A £ MEAK  THREES EMIR Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T T T T T
At 1 May 2019 REF-NFEEA—H - (12,596) (457) - - (13,053)
Lease liabilities raised upon i B s
application of HKFRS 16 165 R EE
ZHEARK = = (50,496) = - (50,496)
Accrued interest JERHFLE = = (1,967) = = (1,967)
Interest paid EMAER = = 1,967 = = 1,967
Financing cash outflows il B 4 00 ¢ = 9,560 11,642 = - 21,202
Financing cash inflows HEH & RA = (18,986) = = = (18,986)
Exchange realignment I 56,78 = = 1,678 = = 1,678
At 30 April 2020 and REFZZRENA=Z1H
1 May 2020 BoZF-RELA—H - (22,022) (37,633) - - (59,655)
Accrued interest HEFHFS, (98) = (1,559) (401) = (2,038)
Interest paid EAFLE 98 = 1,559 = = 1,657
Fair value loss on derivative MAESMIAZ
financial insturments N RfERER = = = = (696) (696)
Addition of lease liabilities WHEHEA R = = (4,784) = = (4,784)
Financing cash outflows EB AR S 122 8,445 11,796 - - 20,363
Financing cash inflows G B A (40,000) (29,882) - (7,668) (1,715) (79,265)
Exchange realignment [ 3, 7 4 = = (2,562) = = (2,562)
As 30 April 2021 REZFZ—HNA=1+H (39.878) (43,459) (33,183) (8,069) (2,411) (127,000
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37.
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S 5 i o B
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% —F ——4F[q H

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s
subsidiaries at 30 April 2021 and 2020 which principally
affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The

- H 1l

A i

37.

directors of the Company are of the opinion that a full

list of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive length.

These subsidiaries operate principally in the place of

establishment/incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

Name of subsidiaries

i} PRk

The Industrial Investment
Company Limited

QPL (Holdings) Limited
HELEARAA

QPL Limited
RERRATF

Place of

establishment/

incorporation Principal activities

/RS FEEH

Cayman Islands ~ Investment holding

HEwE RERR

Hong Kong Investment holding

Fik BEER

Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of

i integrated circuit

leadframes, heatsinks,
stiffeners and
related products

RERHEEMER | R
AR R R B E

Paid up

registered capital/
Issued share capital
CHtMEA/
BRITRA

2,050 ordinary shares
of HKSI each

20508 BB EELE T
ZEER

408,000,772 ordinary
shares of
HKS$0.04 each
408,000,772
T 50,043 76 2 1 4 A

2 ordinary shares of
HKS1 each and
1,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HKS! each (Note b)

WEREEIELZ
T4 R, 00084
1T BT
AR (M7 b)

E 30 - PN

UTAR-F R _F _FFNA
ST FEERBAREES BEENAR
ZARFMBARMFEE AN EH
T4 B B A 2 R 2 4 B R IT
B o BR 53 A 46 WISk % 5 Y A W R R
FORSE/RE ST B A o

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capitalfissue share capital held by

PR A/ CRITRAZ A
Company Subsidiary
AR W 2l
2021 2020 2021 2020
% 0o Sk < S e S
% % % %
244 244 97.56 97.56
100 100 - -
- - 100 100
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #% —F -~ —4F0H =+ H ILF A

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Paid up
establishment/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiaries incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital
WAL B/ M R R CHthEA/
S#INA
QPL (US) Inc. The USA Distribution of integrated 150,603 ordinary shares
% circuit leadframes and of no par value,
investment holding paid up to
USD4,071,281
OISR R 3 e 150,603 4 (A
Rt EER: EAURZ40T1.81E T
Enma Holdings Limited British Virgin Island Securities trading 1 ordinary share of
RBRLHE HHER USDI each
IR 1%
LEER
Quality Capital Hong Kong Provision of financial 1 ordinary share of
WEEAERAT Bk assistance and advance HKS!1 each
RGN RAHL IR 1 e
LEER
Excellence Strive British Virgin Island Property Investment | ordinary share of
Holdings Limited RBRTHE WERE USDI each
I w1 %
ZERR
Dongguan Changan QPL The PRC Manufacture and sale of HKS15,000,000i T
Electronics Manufacturing integrated circuit
Company Limited (Note a) leadframes, heatsinks,
RERENEETHEARA stiffeners and
(Hta) related products
S B RS B
BT AR SR
Notes:

(a) Operating principally in the PRC.

(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are
practically of no economic value.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
any time during both years or at the end of both years.

38. THHEWEA "W (4)

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capitalfissue share capital held by

R/ TR AR A T O

Company Subsidiary

AT BB Al
2021 2020 2021 2020
SR ZFC%E %0 CFC%E
% % % %
06.4 06.4 3.6 336
100 100 - -
100 100 - -
100 100 - -
- - 100 100

Mt -
(a) F B PR -

(b) Hy A 2 B F A 2 A0 A T 17 B L S
A ] 88 5 4B (L o

P T A 4 B2 PR AT e B ] B A T 4
AR B A T B 4 W) 3R AT AT o AR B
o
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38.

B BB AR

L 25

For the year ended 30 April 2021 #%E =%

AR A

“+ H 4R

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

38. A2 v M R BE 2

A B A m R i R 2 BB IR LR 2

the Company at the end of the reporting period includes: PR A
2021 2020
R TR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# It T 5o
Non-current assets IR By &
Investments in subsidiaries PHHE AR B E 431 431
431 431
Current assets B &
Amounts due from subsidiaries R AL i 2 ) K IE 321,488 325,436
Bank balances and cash SRATES B LBl & 62,362 73,731
383,850 399,167
Current liabilities i Bh A
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREASH B Jo 2 W] 3k IH 1,526 2,286
Accrued expense MEFF 2 H 306 2,843
1,832 5,129
Net current assets Uit ) & E 382,018 394,038
Total assets less current liabilities A O D B 382,449 394,469
Non-current liabilities I I B £
Convertible bonds A 4 I A 27 8,069 -
Derivative financial instruments i T H 2,411 =
10,480 =
Net assets & 371,969 394,469
Share capital (Note 26) A (i FF26) 1,880 180,501
Share premium and reserves T 103 vk A I At A 370,089 213,968
371,969 394,469
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For the year ended 30 April 2021 #Z% —F ~—4 0 ] =+ H L4 F

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL 38. A ) W B ORI BEEE (7])
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
MOVEMENT IN SHARE PREMIUM AND JBe 4y ek A1 B 4kt 5 4% )
RESERVES
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
e N i e
Bt EAER ok i RibE# wit
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T TH#T T T T T
(Note a)
(H#a)
At 30 April 2019 RZZ—NFENA=1H 696,688 131,129 12,310 35,641 (628,000) 247,768
Loss and total comprehensive REEERR2T
expense for the year B A - = = = (33,800) (33,800)
At 30 April 2020 REZZZENA=A+H 696,688 131,129 12,310 35,641 (661,800) 213,968
Loss and total comprehensive AEEERLAE
expense for the year B A - = = = (25,082) (25,082)
Lapse of share option IR A A = = = (19,040) 19,040 =
Recognition of equity-settled TERR A 45 5 DA A
share-based payment expense HREZ T H 5 - = = 2,582 = 2,582
Capital reorganisation RAEA - 178,621 - - = 178,621
At 30 April 2021 ZEZ-FENA=TA 696,688 309,750 12,310 19,183 (667,842) 370,089
Note: Mt
(a) Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the (a) A [ ol AR [l AR 4 ] 5 A AR T
consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s AN AR AR v 8 A R B T I 073 T (B2 TR 4 o
ordinary shares over the par value of respective
repurchased shares.
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 39. FEIIBRERY
During the year ended 30 April 2021, the Group had P8 EFE - —FNWH =+HIF4FEE R
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities A il R & E L E A A IR B 4
of approximately HKS$4,785,000 and HKS$4,784,000 o4y Al By #14,785,000%: T S 4,784,0004%
respectively. IT ©
EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE 40. %904 54
REPORTING PERIOD
On 2 June 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the R —FNAZH s AARN— A

Company and a bond issuer entered into a subscription
agreement in relation to a subscription of bond at a
consideration of HK$20,000,000. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 2 June 2021 for details.

B N T B — 4 5 AT N R AR
20,000,000%5 JC 58 M 65 75 51 57 58 M6 10h o6 o
ARHEHSHAARBNE T = —
HERAZHZ Ao
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S 25 R 22

The financial summary of the Group for the past five financial

years, as extracted from the Group’s published audited

consolidated financial statements, are set out below:

REVENUE AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

ALEE A C RGN EFELES

S s R Y

A A B A E 2 BB AR S

I R M Al 45 JBE e 2k B s it

For the year ended 30 April
REWA =+ HIEEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
SE—LE ZE-NE ZENE SRDRE ZRIF
HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
T Tk T T T
Revenue g 280,719 315,861 282,743 274,577 368,321
Loss before taxation i B T s 1R (62,444) (210,294) (44,508) (67,337) (11,845)
Taxation (charge)/credit BLIE () /g% 7,294 (1,129) (914) (808) (360)
Loss for the year attributable AR RO A
to shareholders (i (55,150)  (211,423) (45,422) (68,145) (12,205)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % KR
At 30 April
PHMH=+H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
SRt ZE-NE R ZRDFF ZEIERAF
HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
T Tt T Tt TG
Property, plant and equipment VESE $1Y & 27,843 162,701 160,853 126,783 128,035
Right-of-use assets G E = = = 33,856 30,169
Financial asset at FVTPL N R ERI AR Z
SRl 247,908 50,057 43,891 42,870 61,023
Bank balances and cash WATEE R KB A 322,761 150,249 131,276 154,892 187,724
Other current assets HAb i E & 186,828 212,494 198,442 162,066 204,260
Current liabilities i B=K (90,730) (71,981) (66,685) (93,582)  (188,483)
694,610 503,520 467,777 426,885 422,728
Share capital JEE A 180,501 180,501 180,501 180,501 1,880
Share premium and reserves B A0 Ve 0 i 513,145 322,562 287,276 219,786 390,043
Shareholders’ fund B 4 693,646 503,063 467,777 400,287 391,923
Convertible bonds L4 R 5 25 - - = = 8,069
Lease liabilities/obligations under HEAE MEnE
finance leases K 964 457 - 26,598 20,325
Derivative financial instruments MEE£MTH = = = = 2,411
694,610 503,520 467,777 426,885 422,728
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